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INTRODUCTION

The Financial Statements of Crown Corporations, Boards and Authorities are a reproduction of the
available audited financial statements of various Government organizations as approved by the applicable
boards of these organizations. This report is produced alphabetically in two books; A to M and N to Z.
The fiscal years noted in the table of contents are based on the fiscal year end of the organization. This
report includes board-signed financial statements of crown corporations, boards and authorities for their
most recent fiscal year end up to March 31, 2011. In certain instances, the financial statements for their
prior fiscal year end are included due to timing of obtaining board signatures. Financial statements older
than one previous fiscal year end are excluded from this report.

Information on the financial position and results of operations of the Province for the 2010-11 fiscal year
may be found in the following financial reports:
Public Accounts Volume | — Consolidated Summary Financial Statements
This volume presents the summary financial statements which consolidate the financial statements
of the Consolidated Revenue Fund with the financial statements of various Crown Corporations,
Boards and Authorities, as approved by Treasury Board, which are controlled by the Government
of Newfoundland and Labrador.

Public Accounts VVolume Il — Consolidated Revenue Fund Financial Statements

This Volume presents the financial position of the Consolidated Revenue Fund and the results of
its activities on an accrual basis.

Report on the Program Expenditures and Revenues of the Consolidated Revenue Fund
This report presents the actual budgetary contribution (requirement) of the Consolidated Revenue Fund
along with details on the actual revenues and expenditures, by program, using the modified cash basis of

accounting.

The Financial Statements of Crown Corporations, Boards and Agencies are also available on the
Government’s website at: http://www.fin.gov.nl.ca/fin/public_accounts/index.html


http://www.fin.gov.nl.ca/fin/public_accounts/index.html
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This report includes the most recent fiscal year financial statements (current or one prior year), up to

March 31, 2011, that have been received prior to the publication date. All earlier fiscal year statements
have been excluded from this report. The financial statements of the following agencies were not received
in time for the inclusion in this report:

Burin Peninsula Health Care Foundation Inc. (2010 & 2011)

C.A. Pippy Park Commission (2011)

C.A. Pippy Park Golf Course Limited (2011)

Discovery Health Care Foundation Inc. (2011)

Dr. H. Bliss Murphy Cancer Foundation (2011)

Health Care Foundation of St. John’s Inc. (2010 & 2011)

Heritage Foundation of Newfoundland and Labrador (2011)

House of Assembly (2010 & 2011)

Labrador School Board Trust Fund (2010)

Newfoundland and Labrador Arts Council (2011)

Newfoundland and Labrador Farm Products (2010 & 2011)
Newfoundland and Labrador Industrial Development Corporation (2011)
Newfoundland and Labrador Legal Aid Commission (2010 & 2011)
Newfoundland and Labrador Municipal Financing Corporation (2011)
Newfoundland Government Fund (2010 & 2011)

Newfoundland International Student Education Program Inc. (2011)
Newfoundland Ocean Enterprises Limited (2011)

Registrar of the Supreme Court (2011)

The Rooms Corporation of Newfoundland and Labrador (2011)
Trinity-Conception-Placentia Health Foundation Inc. (2011)
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BUSINESS INVESTMENT CORPORATION

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 MARCH 2011
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BUSINESS INVESTMENT CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

STATEMENT 1

31 March 2011 2010
ASSETS
Cash (Note 2) $ 20,410,488 $ 19,086,034
Due from Province 13,000 13,000
Bank interest receivable 17,653 6,874
Loans and equity investments (Note 3) 8,247,736 7,984,235
Long-term investments (Note 4) 9.422 9.422
$ 28.698.299 $ 27.099.565
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 22,558 $ 13,000
Borrowers’ deposits - 68,517
22,558 81,517
Equity 28.675.741 27,018,048
$ 28.698.299 $_27.099.565

Contingent liabilities (Note 5)
Commitments (Note 6)

See accompanying notes

Signed on behalf of the Board:
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BUSINESS INVESTMENT CORPORATION

STATEMENT OF EQUITY

STATEMENT 2

For the Year Ended 31 March 2011 2010
Contributed capital (Note 7)

Balance, beginning of year $ 47,795,061 $ 48,681,122
Aquaculture Working Capital Fund reserve (Note 2) 3,765 2,131
Principal written off, net of recoveries (Note 3) (3,659,603) (888.,192)

Balance, end of year 44,139,223 47,795,061

Deficit

Balance, beginning of year (20,777,013) (21,694,704)
Excess of revenues over expenses 1,653,928 29,499
Principal written off, net of recoveries (Note 3) 3,659.603 888.192

Balance, end of year (15,463,482) (20.777.013)

Equity, end of year

$ 28.675.741

$ 27,018,048

See accompanying notes
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BUSINESS INVESTMENT CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES

STATEMENT 3

For the Year Ended 31 March 2011 2010
REVENUES
Interest on loans $ 658,054 $ 948,807
Other investment income 157,791 91,556
Contributions from Province
Business Marketing and Development Program 1,000,000 1,000,000
Other Provincial contributions (Note 9) 998,516 987,270
Recovery in value of loans receivable and
equity investments (Note 3) 452,399 -
3,266,760 3,027,633
EXPENSES
Business Marketing and Development Program - 605,981 663,590
Provision for decline in value of loans receivable
and equity investments (Note 3) - 1,342,240
Operating expenses (Note 9) 998,516 987,270
Bank charges 2,761 3,200
Miscellaneous expense 5.574 1.834
1.612.832 _2.998.134
Excess of revenues over expenses $ 1653928 $ _29.499

See accompanying notes
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BUSINESS INVESTMENT CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

STATEMENT 4

For the Year Ended 31 March 2011 2010
Cash flows from operating activities
Excess of revenues over expenses 1,653,928 29,499
Add non-cash items
Provision for (recovery) decline in value of loans receivable
and equity investments (452,399) 1,342,240
1,201,529 1,371,739
Change in non-cash operating items
Due from Province - (13,000)
Bank interest receivable (10,779) (6,874)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 9,558 13,000
Borrowers’ deposits (68.517) -
1,131,791 1,364.865
Cash flows from investing activities
Increase in loans and equity investments (2,880,038) (3,457,496)
Collection of loans and equity investments 3.068.936 2,836,301
188,898 (621,195)
Cash flows from financing activities
Aquaculture Working Capital Fund reserve 3.765 2,131
3,765 2,131
Net increase in cash 1,324,454 745,801
Cash, beginning of year 19,086,034 18,340,233

Cash, end of year

§ 20,410,488

$ 19,086,034

See accompanying notes
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BUSINESS INVESTMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2011

Authority

The Business Investment Corporation (the Corporation) was established under the authority of the Business
Investment Corporation Act. The Corporation is funded by the Province of Newfoundland and Labrador (the
Province) and is responsible for making available and managing investments in small to medium sized private
businesses, co-operatives, community development corporations and other enterprises for the purpose of
creating employment opportunities for the people of the Province. The affairs of the Corporation are managed
by a Board of Directors appointed by the Lieutenant-Governor in Council.

The Business Investment Corporation Act came into force effective 1 April 2002. Under this Act, the Business
Investment Corporation was incorporated and became the successor to Enterprise Newfoundland and Labrador
Corporation, the Fisheries Loan Board and the Farm Development Loan Board. Also under this Act, the
Fisheries Loan Act, the Farm Development Loan Act, the Economic Recovery Commission Act and the
Enterprise Newfoundland and Labrador Corporation Act were repealed.

1. Summary of significant accounting policies

These financial statements have been prepared by the Corporation’s management in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. Outlined below are the significant accounting policies

followed.
(a) Loans receivable

The Corporation records loans receivable at cost. When loans are identified as impaired, the
Corporation records an allowance to reduce their carrying values to their estimated realizable
amounts. Estimated realizable amounts are measured at discounted cash flows when the cash flows
can be estimated with reasonable reliability, or alternatively, at the estimated net realizable value of
the underlying security.

(b) Equity investments

The Corporation records equity investments at cost. In certain circumstances, the Corporation may
have acquired the right to appoint representatives to an equity investee’s board of directors or it may
have a significant influence on the strategic operating, investing and financing policies of the
investee. However, because of the nature of the Corporation’s investment process and the manner in
which these positions were acquired, such control or significant influence may not in fact be
exercised or the Corporation may not intend to maintain such positions. Accordingly the
Corporation’s equity investments for all companies in which the Corporation holds voting rights are
accounted for on the cost basis.

Provision is made by the Corporation for any decline in the value of investee companies which is
considered to be other than temporary.

20
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BUSINESS INVESTMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2011

l.

2.

Significant accounting policies (cont.)
(c) Revenue recognition
Contributions from the Province are recorded as revenue by the Corporation.

Interest income is accounted for on the accrual basis for bank interest and all loans other than the
impaired portion of loans. Recognition of interest in accordance with the terms of the original loan
agreement ceases when a loan becomes impaired. A loan is classified as impaired when, in the
opinion of management, there is reasonable doubt as to the ultimate collectability of a portion of
principal or interest, or when payment is contractually past due 90 days. The impaired portion of
loans may revert to accrual status only when principal and interest payments have become fully
current again, at which time any interest will be recognized in that fiscal year.

Dividends are recorded as income when received.

Aquaculture Working Capital Fund

On 30 March 2001, Enterprise Newfoundland and Labrador Corporation, a predecessor of the
Corporation, entered into an agreement with the Federal and Provincial Governments to set up the
Aquaculture Working Capital Fund (AWCF). The AWCF assists individuals and companies in the shell
fish industry throughout the Province through repayable loans. The AWCEF is a revolving fund in which
the Corporation retains the loan repayments for future aquaculture loans until the conclusion of the
agreement. The agreement was scheduled to conclude on 31 March 2011; however, it is expected to be
extended for 3 years, at which time the Corporation will reimburse all monies to the Federal and Provincial
governments based on the proportions of their contribution. The Fund is recorded as contributed capital
and, for the year ended 31 March 2011, increased by $3,765 (2010 - $2,131).

To date the Corporation has received funding totalling $1.5 million based on contributions of $1.3 million
in Federal funding from the Canada/Newfoundland Strategic Regional Diversification Agreement, and
$160,000 Federal and $40,000 Provincial funding from the Canada/Newfoundland Agreement on
Economic Renewal.

As at 31 March 2011, the AWCF had 14 loans outstanding totalling $1,087,345 (2010 - 14 loans totalling
$1,103,185). During 2003-04 the Corporation established a separate loan portfolio and bank account to
administer the AWCF and assist in identifying payments that are received and held for future loans. As at
31 March 2011, the AWCEF had a cash balance of $543,266 (2010 - $487,437) which is included in these
financial statements as part of the total cash funds of $20,410,488 (2010 - $19,086,034).

Loans and equity investments

The determination of whether a loan is impaired and the appropriate carrying value of equity investments,
involves significant judgement. The estimation of an appropriate allowance for decline in value of loans
receivable and equity investments necessarily involves the use of estimates. These financial statements
represent management’s best estimates based on available information.

21 Office of the Audltor General



BUSINESS INVESTMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2011

3. Loans and equity investments (cont.)

2011 2010
Loans receivable
Principal due and unpaid $ 15,932,332 $ 16,683,045
Principal not yet due 12,695,196 13,434,145
Interest due and unpaid 3,275,892 3,174.387
31,903,420 33,291,577
Less: allowance for decline in value _(23,780.923) (25.512.763)
8,122,497 7,778.814
Equity investments
Equity investments, at cost 17,248,970 19,927,818
Less: _allowance for decline in value (17,123.731) (19,722.397)
125,239 205.421
Loans and equity investments $ 8.247.736 $ 7.984235

The allowance for decline in value of loans receivable and equity investments consists of the following:

2011 201
Balance, beginning of year $ 45,235,160 § 44,957,215
Principal written off, net of recoveries (3,659,603) (888,192)
Interest written off, net of recoveries (218,504) (176,103)
Provision for (recovery) decline in value of loans
receivable and equity investments (452.399) 1,342.240
Balance, end of year $ 40,904,654 $ 45235160

The allowance for decline in value represents the Corporation’s best estimate of future probable losses
with respect to the loans receivable and equity investments. The Corporation recognizes that future
economic and industry conditions are not predictable and therefore, their impact on the future cash
flows anticipated is uncertain. Consequently, adjustments to the allowance are possible depending on

the impact of these future events and management's best estimate of them.
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BUSINESS INVESTMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2011

4. Long-term investments

Long-term investments consist of 673 shares of Sun Life Financial Services of Canada Incorporated
which were given to the Corporation as a result of the demutualization of Sun Life Assurance Company
of Canada. The carrying value of the shares is recognized at the fair market value of $9,422 as
determined by the share price at the time of the transfer of shares to the Corporation. The fair market
value of these shares as at 31 March 2011 was $20,506 (2010 - $21,711).

Contingent liabilities

(a) A client of the Corporation has taken legal action as a result of certain alleged technical problems
that the client claims to have experienced with a vessel that was financed through the Fisheries Loan
Board Program. The amount of this potential claim is in the $900,000 to $1,100,000 range. In a
matter related to this legal action, another party has been awarded a claim of $1,800,000. The
Province will not appeal this decision.

(b) A statement of claim has been served on the Corporation by a company claiming a breach of
contract. The company is claiming special damages of $811,040, other general and unspecified
damages, interest and costs associated with the action. The likelihood of loss as a result of this claim

is not determinable.

Commitments

The Corporation has outstanding commitments in respect of approved but not yet disbursed loans,
equity investments and/or grants in the amount of $2,312,465 (2010 - $2,667,544).

Contributed capital

Contributed capital represents accumulated capital contributions from the Province and the Government
of Canada. These contributions are used for the purpose of making loans, equity investments, and
providing business and market development grants. The Corporation depends on these capital
contributions to carry out its mandate.

23
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BUSINESS INVESTMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2011

8. Financial instruments

The Corporation's financial instruments recognized on the statement of financial position, in addition to
the long-term investments described in Note 4, consist of cash, due from Province, bank interest
receivable, loans and equity investments, and accounts payable and accrued liabilities. The carrying
values of cash, due from Province, bank interest receivable, and accounts payable and accrued liabilities
approximate current fair value due to their nature and the short-term maturity or current market rate
associated with these instruments.

The Corporation’s loans and equity investments are recognized on the statement of financial position at
cost with provision being made for any decline in their value. Any estimated impairment of these loans
and equity investments has been provided for through an allowance for decline in value and no further
credit risk exists for these items. The carrying value of loans and equity investments approximates
discounted value of expected receipts. Therefore, their carrying values approximate their current fair value
and these instruments are not subject to any material interest rate risk.

Related party transactions

The Corporation is administered as a division of the Department of Innovation, Trade and Rural
Development. Expenses related to salaries, accommodations and administration totalling $998,516
(2010 -$987,270) are paid directly by the Department and are reflected in these financial statements as
expenses of the Corporation and as revenue from the Province.

10. Economic dependence

11.

As aresult of the Corporation’s reliance on Provincial funding, the Corporation’s ability to continue viable
operations is dependent upon the decisions of the Province.

Income taxes

The Corporation is a Crown entity of the Province of Newfoundland and Labrador and as such is not
subject to Provincial or Federal income taxes.
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Conseil scolaire francophone provincial
de Terre-Neuve-et-Labrador

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
June 30, 2010

2010 2009
Assets
Current Assets
Cash (Supp. Info. 1) $ 84020 $ -
Short Term Investments (Supp. Infa. 2) 206,000 306,000
Accounts Receivable (Note 2) 458,713 493,156
HST Receivable 30,254 28,603
Prepaid Expenses (Supp. Info. 3) 21,191 31,802
Total Current Assets 800,178 859,561

Long Term Investments - -
Capital Assets {(Sch. 8) 9,550,794 7,660,469

$ 10,350,972 $ 8,520,030

Liabilitles and Board Equity
Current Llabilities

Due to Bank (Supp. Info.1) $ - % 63,205
Due to the Government of Newfoundland & Labrador 118,899 152,733
Accounts Payable and Accruals (Note 3) 67,800 53,614
Current Maturities 4,000 -
Total Current Liabilities 190,699 269,552
Long-Term Debt 3,500 -
Severance Pay Benefits - Teaching staff (Note 5) 335,438 238,694
Severance Pay Benefits - Non-teaching staff (Note 5) 59,767 50,698
Other Employee Benefits - Vacation pay 12,266 10,238
Executive Staff Paid Leave (Note 6) 53,129 41,073
Summer Pay Liability 404,409 372,746
Deferred Revenue 32,962 88,571
897,971 802,020
Board Equity
Investment in Capital Assets {Note 4) 9,539,352 7,646,175
Reserve - (Note 7) 51,000 36,000
Board Equity (Deficit) (331,550} (233,717)
Total Board Equity 9,258,802 7,448 458

10,350,972 $ 8,520,030

Contingent liability {Note 8)
Approved;

Director of Education
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Conseil scolaire francophone provincial
de Terre-Neuve-et-Labrador

Statement of Current Revenues, Expenditures and Board Equity (Deficlency)

Year Ended June 30, 2010

Current Revenue (Schedule 1)

Federal Government Granls
Provincial Government Grants
Donations

Ancillary Services
Misceltaneous

Current Expenditures

Administration - (Schedule 2)

Instrucilon (Schedule 3)

Operations and Malntenance (Schedule 4)

Pupil Transportalion (Schedule 5)

Ancillary Services (Schedule )

Miscellaneous Expense (Schedule 7)

Pupil Services - federal grant {Schedule 10)
Community programs - federal grant (Schedule 11)
Amortizatlon of capital assels

Excess of Revenue over Expenditura before
undsmoled item

Transfer to Capital Fund
Excess of Revenue over Expenditure for the Period

Executive Staff Paid Leave (Note 8)
Teacher severance pay accrual (Note 5}

Adjusled excess of Revenue over Expenditures
Board Deliciency, Beginning of Year
Transfer (to) from reserve

Fund Deficiency, End of the Year

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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2010 Budget 2009

$ 1148895 § 1,146895 $ 1,215865
6,067,015 5,558,805 5,791,572
129,888 130,000 138,002
406 1,400 14,849
7,344,204 6,837,100 7,160,288
600,094 502,030 525,185
3,885,084 3,629,675 3,679,283
641,823 655,000 698,978
413,556 390,000 379,509
161,198 160,000 198,809

33,500 - -
949,709 970,995 1,024,758
175,800 175,800 173,665
385,717 387,500 385,030
7,248,381 6,871,100 7,063,213
97,823 {34,000) 97,074
71,858 - 45,415

25,9687 $ 134»'000! 51,659

(12,056)
(98,744)

(82,833)
(233,717)
(15,000)
$__(331,550)

(41,073)
8,357

2,229
(220,948)
(15,000)
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Conseil scolaire francophone provincial
de Terre-Neuve-et-Labrador

Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended June 30, 2010

Operating Actlvities

Excess of Ravenue over Expenditures
(Expenditures over Revenue)

Changes in Non-Cash Working Capital
- Short Term Investments
- Accounts Receivable

Prepaid Expenses

Accounts Payable & Accrued Expenses

Amortization of capital assets

Other nan-working capital items

- Summer Pay Liability

- Severance pay accrual

- Long term deposits

- Other employee benefits

- Deferred revenue

Financing Activities
Proceeds form Bank Loans
Grants - Capital

Other Capital Revenue
Changes in Long-Term Debt
Other - reserve

Investing Activitles

Proceeds in Sale of Capital Assets
Additions to Capital Assets

Other

Increase (decrease) in Cash
Cash, Beginning of the Year

Cash, End of the Year

2010 2009

$ (82.833) $ 2,229
100,000 (81,000)
32,791 (74.863)
10,611 (20,217)
(15,650) (71,273)
2,855 2,825
31,663 47,386
105,813 30,148
14,084 42,243
(55,609) 77,077
143,725 (45,445)
2,276,040 233,636
3,500 -
2,279,540 233,636
(2,276,040) (233,636)
(2,276,040) (233,636)
147,225 (45,445)
(63,205) (17,760)

$ 84020 $ (63,205)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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Conseil scolaire francophone provincial
de Terre-Neuve-et-Labrador
Statement of Changes in Capital Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2010

201

N
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Capital Receipts

Proceeds from Bank Loans

- School Construction $ - 3 -
- Equipment - -
- Service Vehicles o =
- Pupil Transportation - -

Federal Grants

School Construction and Equipment - -
Other - -

Donations

- Cash Receipts - -
- Non-Cash Receipts - -
- Restricted Use = -

Sale of Capital Assets - Proceeds

- Land & 012 Buildings - -
- Equipment - -
- Service Vehicles - -
- Pupil Transportation Vehicles - -

Other Capital Revenues
- Interest on Capital Fund Investments - -
- Premiums on Debentures - -
- Recoveries of Expenditures - -
- Insurance Proceeds - -
- Native Peoples Grants - -
- Miscellaneous

- Capital Grants - Province of NL 2,374,184 188,221

- Disposal of School in Goose Bay (170,000)

- Cost sharing for Info Technology Grants - -

Total Capital Receipts 2,204,184 188,221

Transfer from Reserve Account - -

Transfer from Current Fund 71,856 45,415

Total $ 2,276,040 $ 233,636

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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Conseil scolaire francophone provincial
de Terre-Neuve-et-Labrador

Statement of Changes in Capital Fund (Cont'd)
Year Ended June 30, 2010

N
o
pry
o

2009

Capital Disbursements

Additions to Capital Assets
- Land and Sites $ - $ 125,000
- Buildings (net) 2,165,128 63,221
- Fumiture & Equipment - Schools 98,995 19,070
- Fumiture & Equipment - Other 10,767 25,454
- Service Vehicles - -
- Pupil Transportation -
- Other - Centre des Grands-Vents 1,150 891

2,276,040 233,636

Principal Repayment of Long Term Debt

- School Construction - -
- Equipment - c
- Service Vehicles - -
- Other o -

Miscellaneous Disbursements
- Other - -

Total Capital Disbursements $ 2276040 $ 233,636

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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Conseil scolaire francophone provincial
de Terre-Neuve-et-Labrador

Notes to the Financlal Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2010

1. Significant Accounting Policies:

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a fund accounting basis which
is generally accepted for School Districts. Fund accounting can be defined as "accounting procedures in
which a self balancing group of accounts is provided for each fund®. It is customary for Schoot Districts
to account separately for the current and capital funds.

A summary of significant accounting policies adopted by the District, relating to their use of
fund accounting, is as follows:

a) Grants received by the District are recorded in either the current or capital funds
depending on their source. Grants from the Department of Education are treated as
current revenues while those from the Province In regard to capital projects are
recorded as capital revenues.

b) Capital asset additions are recorded at full cost in the capital fund and are amortized over their useful lives.
¢) Capital assets are amortized using lhe straight line meihod based on the following number of years:

School buildings - 40 years
Fumiture - 10 years
Equipment - 10 years
Computers - 4 years

d) Funding relating to capital assets is deferred and amortized according to the same method used
for the assets to which it relates.

e) The School board has acquired, in certain cases, land for its buildings without cost. In other cases,
lhe board obtained authorization to use the land without ownership, as long as the properties are
used for educational purposes. In the case where the land is board property, value determinations
were not possible, meaning that the fair market value was not recorded.

f) The preparalion of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount
of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Such estimates
include providing for amortization of capital assets. Actual resulls could differ from these estimates.
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Conseil scolaire francophone provincial

de Terre-Neuve-et-Labrador

Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2010

N
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Accounts Receivable

Current

Provincial Government $ 413,052
Transportation -
Federal Government 18,063
Other School Districts -
Rent 24,733
Interest 13
Travel Advances and Misc. 2,311

Capital

Provincial Government Construction Grants 541
Local Contributions

Other School Districts

Other

2009

$ 438,085
28,473
21,386

155
4,039

1,018

$ 458,713

$ 493,156
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Conseil scolaire francophone provincial

de Terre-Neuve-et-Labrador

Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2010

Accounts Payable and Accruals

Current

Trade Payable
Accrued

- Liabilities
- Interest
- Wages

Payroll Deductions

Retail Sales Tax
Deferred Grants
Qther

Capital

Trade Payable
Accrued

Deferred Grants
Other

- Liabilities
- Interest
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2010 2009
$ 28,240 $ 27,396

39,560 26,218
$ 67,800 $ 53,614
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Conseil scolaire francophone provincial
de Terre-Neuve-et-Labrador

Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2010

Investment in capital assets -
beginning of year $ 7,646,175

2009

$ 7,794,745

Add:

Transfer of Operating Funds to Capital Fund 71,856
Grants
- Province - Contribution for Capital Construction -
- Other -
Capital Projects funded by the province but paid directly to
other souces on behalf of the District 2,374,183
Donations
Proceeds from the sale of Capital Assets
- Land
- Buildings
- Equipment
- Vehicles
- Other
Interest on Capital Fund Investments
Recoveries of Expenditures
Insurance Proceeds - Capital
Miscellaneous

45,415

188,221

2,446,039

233,636

Deduct Adjustments

Amortization of Investment in Capital Assets 382,862
Cost of assets sold
- Land
- Buildings 170,000
- Equipment
- Vehicles
- Other -

382,206

-

552,862

382,206

Other -

Investment in capital assets $ 9,539,352

$ 7,646,175
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Conseil scolaire francophone provincial
de Terre-Neuve-et-Labrador

Notes to the Financlal Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2010

5 Accrued Severance Leave

The amount of $96,744 for teachers' severance costs and the amount of $9,069 [lor non-teaching

staff severance costs ara included in expenses. The amount of $335,438 for teachers' severance

cosis and the amount of $59,767 for non-teaching staff severance costs for a total of $395,115 are
included in 1he liabilities.

The ad)ustment for teachers' severance pay is required by the Depariment of Education of the
Govemment of Newfoundland and Labrador and has no impact on the operation of the Schoal
Board. No account receivable s included in the accounts to offsel this liability.

The accrued severance leave for non-teaching personnel is funded out of the board's regular
operaling grants.

8 Executlve Staff Pald Leave

The amount of $12,056 for executive siaff paid leave has been included in current year expenses.

The amount of $41,073 for executive staff paid leave related to June 30, 2009 has been reflected
approprialely in that period. No account receivable is included in the accounts to offset this liabilty.

7 Reserve

In accordance with leases with 1he tenants of lhe Centre scolaire et communautaire des
Grand-Vents in St. John's, Ihis reserve constitutes funds that management has designated as
restricted funds 1o allow for the future purchase of computer equipment and major renovations
of the building.

8  Contingent liabllity

The organization was served a statement of claim for an unspecified dollar amount by an individual for
wrongful dismissal from a position within Conseil scolaire francophone provincial de Terre-Neuve-et-Labrador
Subsequentlly, a defensa to the statement of claim has been filed by the organization. To date this issue has
yet lo be resolved and the amount and likelihood any settlement is not determinable al this time.

9 Comparative flgures

Certain of lhe prior year comparalive figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.
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Conseil scolaire francophone provincial

de Terre-Neuve-et-Labrador

Current Revenues
Year Ended June 30, 2010

Current Revenues

Federal Government Grants
Regular Operating Grants

Provinclal Government Grants
Regular Operating Grants
Amort. of deferred rev for capital assets
Special Grants
- Traditionnal Music
- Official Language Monitor
- French Language recuperation
- Textboaok credit allocation
- Communication Tech
- Other
Salaries and Benefits
- Superintendent and Asst. Supts.
- Regular Teachers
- Substitute Teachers
- Student Assistants
- Senior Educational Officer
Pupil Transportation
- Board Owned
- Contracted
- Handicapped

Donations

Cash Receipts
Non Cash Receipts
Restricted Use

Ancillary Services

Revenues from Rental of Residences

Revenues from Rental of Schools and
Facilities

Cafeterias

QOther - ARCO

Schedule 1

2019 Budget 2009
$ 1,146,895 $ 1,146,895 $ 1215865
1,446,743 1,462,805 1,385,608
382,862 385,000 382,206
30,063 57,500 40,473
223,193 5,000 171,637
228,500 215,000 212,343
3,082,757 2,885,000 2,972,698
103,325 72,100 97,309
166,182 46,400 66,825
7,187 50,000 85,771
396,203 380,000 376,702
6,067,015 5,558,805 5,791,572
- - 7,875
104,888 105,000 105,127
25,000 25,000 25,000
129,888 130,000 138,002
7,343,798 6,835,700 7,145,439
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Schedule 1 (Cont'd)

Conseil scolaire francophone provincial

de Terre-Neuve-et-Labrador

Current Revenues
Year Ended June 30, 2010

Miscellaneous
Interest on Investments
Bus Charters
Recoveries of Expenditures
Revenues from Other School Boards
Insurance Proceeds
Bilingual Education Revenue
Operating Rev. from Native Peoples Grant
Miscellaneous Federal Grants
Textbooks
Other

- Mining Company Grants

- Tutoring for tuition

- Sundry

Total Current Revenues
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2010 Budget 2009
406 350 953
- . 13,391
- 1,050 505
406 1,400 14,849
$ 7344204 $ 6837100 $ 7,160,288




Conseil scolaire francophone provincial

de Terre-Neuve-et-Labrador

Administration Expenditures
Year Ended June 30, 2010

Salaries and Benefits

- Superintendents and
Assistant Superintendents

- Board Office Personnel

Office Supplies

Replacement Furniture and Equipment
Postage

Telephone

Office Equipment Rentals and Repairs
Bank Charges

Electricity

Fuel

Insurance

Repairs and Maintenance - Office Building
Travel

Board Meeting Expenses

Election Expenses

Professional Fees

Advertising - Recruitment
Membership Dues

Municipal Service Fees

Rental of Office Space

Relocation Expenses

Miscellaneous

Payroll Tax

Training

Total Administration Expenditures
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2010

Budget

$ 228,538 $ 215,000

117,549

6,073
3,078
7,152
21,863
10,024
4,052

3,151
30,249
54,474

63,921
10,568
24,344

1,090

786

13,182

106,255

7,500
6,500
6,500
19,000
7,500
3,500

3,000
23,500
50,000
22,500

7,500
16,500

575

2,000
1,700

3,000

Schedule 2

2009

$ 212,343
116,847

9,550
3,990
7,626
18,438
10,124
3,680

3,867
32,675
38,995

28,369
16,906
17,188

520

2,015

2,052

$ 600,094 § 502,030 §$ 525,185




Conseil scolaire francophone provincial

de Terre-Neuve-et-Labrador

Instruction Expenditures

Schedule 3

Year Ended June 30, 2010
2010 Budget 2009
Instructlonal Salarles {(Gross)
Teachers' Salaries - Regular $2,619,187 § 2,430,000 $ 2,521,147
- Substitute 89,966 72,100 87,229
- Board Paid 64,525 82,500 18,489
Augmentation - - -
Employee Benefits 442,737 400,000 426,556
School Secretaries - Salaries & Benefils 150,346 151,000 155,961
Payroll Tax 61,174 55,000 58,506
Other - Sal. & Ben. - program coord. 57,629 153,175 160,310
Qther - Sal. & Ben. - student asst 139,793 46,400 55,816
Other - Sal. & Ben. - Labrador - - 834
3,625,357 3,390,175 3,484 848
Instructional Materials
General Supplies 21,972 23,500 20,214
Library Resource Materials 554 2,500 -
Teaching Aids 30,220 29,000 31,797
Textbooks - 2,500 381
52,746 57,500 52,392
Instructional Furniture and Equipment
Replacement 21,518 30,000 9,438
Rentals and Repairs 7,680 8,500 9,855
29,198 38,500 19,293
Instructional Staff Travel
Program Co-ordinators 6,371 23,500 30,186
Teachers' Travel 12,625 17,500 26,164
Inservice and Conferences 4,108 6,500 1,896
23,104 47,500 58,246
Other Instructional Costs
French Monitor Program 32,881 62,500 44,483
Inclusion - Support Services 75,960 - 9,003
Secretaries - Training 170 1,000 -
Secretaries - Travels 2,042 1,500 -
Secrelaries - Equipment - 1,000 -
Traditionnal Music - - 9,359
Kinderstart 4477 5,000 1,659
Extra Curricular Projects 9,516 13,000 -
Healthy Meals Projects 4,725 7,000 -
Principals discretionary budget 3,608 5,000 -
Arts Workshop 21,300 - -
154,679 96,000 64,504
Total Instruction Expenditures $ 3,885,084 §$ 3,629,675 §$§ 3,679,283
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Schedule 4

Conseil scolaire francophone provincial
de Terre-Neuve-et-Labrador

Operations and Maintenance Expenditures - Schools
Year Ended June 30, 2010

201 Budget 2009
Salaries - Janitorial $ 211,723 $ 196,500 $ 214,158
- Maintenance 61,673 78,500 94,806
Payroll Tax -
Electricity 131,114 140,000 140,738
Fuel - -
Municipal Service Fees/Garbage Removal 7.169 7,500 7,468
Telephone 26,590 26,500 24,241
Vehicle Operating and Travel 16,427 22,000 21,991
Janitorial Supplies 19,967 17,500 16,877
Janitorial Equipment 1,522 5,000 1,823
Repairs and Maintenance - Buildings 92,608 62,000 101,502
- Equipment 3,985 18,500 7,080
Contracted Services - Janitorial 1,125 2,000 5,089
Snow Clearing 63,316 70,000 59,980
Rentals - i
Other (training) 1,149 5,500
Other (Security systems) 3,255 3,500 3,223

Total Operations and Maintenance $ 641623 §$ 655000 $§ 698976
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Schedule 5

Conseil scolaire francophone provincial
de Terre-Neuve-et-Labrador

Pupil Transportation Expenditure
Year Ended June 30, 2010

)
—
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Operation and Maintenance of Board
Owned Fleet $ - $ -
Vehicle Leases - -

Contracted Services
Regular Transportation 413,556 390,000 379,509

Handicapped - -

413,556 390,000 379,509

Pupil Transportation Expenditures $ 413,556 $ 390,000 $ 379,509
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Conseil scolaire francophone provincial
de Terre-Neuve-et-Labrador

Ancillary Services and Miscellaneous Expenses
Year Ended June 30, 2010

Schedule 6
Ancillary Services
The Board owns and operates the following ancillary services:
2010 Budget 2009
Ancillary Services
Operation of Teachers' Residences $ 1,100 $ - $ 16,571
Cafeterias - -
Other - Community Centre operations 160,098 160,000 180,238
Other - Environmental Centre - -
Total ancillary services $ 161,198 $ 160,000 $ 196,809
Schedule 7
Miscellaneous Expenses
The Board has incurred the following miscellaneous expenses:
GPS Project $ 25000 $ - $ -

Green Environment Project 8,500 - -

Total miscellaneous expenses $ 33,500 $ - $ =
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Land and Sites
Land and Siles

Buildings
Schools
Adminlstrailon
Residential
Recreational
Other

Furmniture and Equlp.
Schools
Administration
Resldential
Recreation
Other - CGV

Misc. Capital Assets
Other

Total Capital Assets

Consail scolaire francophone provincial
de Terre-Neuve-et-Labrador

Detalls of Capital Assets
Yaar Ended June 30, 2010

Schedule 8

Accumulated Net book Net book
Cost Additions Disposals Cost Amortization value value
2009 2010 2010 2010 2010 2010 2009
$ 125000 § = - & 125,000 $ - $ 125000 § 125,000
11,199,129 2,335,128 200,000 13,334,257 4,329,418 9,004,839 7,127,394
11,199,129 2,335,128 200,000 13,334,257 4,329,418 9,004,839 7,127,394
864,216 98,995 963,211 616,072 347,139 322,143
323,574 10,767 334,341 283,587 50,754 59,753
41,521 1,150 42,671 19,609 23,062 26,179
1,229,311 110,912 - 1,340,223 919,268 420,955 408,075
$§ 12,553,440 § 2,446,040 $ 200000 $ 14799480 3 5248686 $ 9550794 § 7,660,469
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Schedule 9

Conseil scolaire francophone provincial

de Terre-Neuve-et-Labrador

Detalls of Long Term Debt
Year Ended June 30, 2010

Loans Other than Pupil Transportation

Bank Loans

___Repayable §
____Repayable §
___Repayable $
____Repayable 3
___Repayable $
____Repayable $

monthly, maturing

monthly, maturing

monthly, maturing
monthly, maturing
monthly, maturing

monthly, maturing

(o]
—
o
[

Total

Mortgages
____Repayable $
___Repayable $
____Repayable $
___Repayable $
____Repayable $
___Repayable $

Total

Debentures
___Repayable $
___Repayable $

Total

Subtotal

annually, maturing
monthly, maturing
monthly, maturing
monthly, maturing
monthly, maturing
monthly, maturing

annually, maturing
monthly, maturing

Less Current Maturities
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Conseil scolaire francophone provincial

Schedule 9 (Cont'd)

de Terre-Neuve-et-Labrador

Details of Long Term Debt
Year Ended June 30, 2010

Loans - Pupil Transportation

Vehicle Bank Loans

____ _Repayable § monthly, maturing
___ Repayable $ monthly, maturing
_____Repayable $ monthly, maturing
_____Repayable $ monthly, maturing
__ Repayable $ monthly, maturing
______Repayable $ monthly, maturing
____ Repayable $ monthly, maturing
_____ Repayable $ monthly, maturing
_____Repayable $ monthly, maturing
_____Repayable $ monthly, maturing
_____ Repayable $ monthly, maturing
_____Repayable $ monthly, maturing
____ Repayable $ monthly, maturing

Total

Land, Buildings and Equipment Bank Loans

Repayable $ monthly, maturing
Repayable $ monthly, maturing
Repayable $ monthly, maturing
Repayable $ monthly, maturing
Repayable $ monthly, maturing
Total
Subtotal

Less Current Maturities

Total Loans - Pupil Transportation
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Schedule 9A

Conseil scolaire francophone provincial
de Terre-Neuve-et-Labrador

Summary of Long Term Debt
Year Ended June 30, 2010

Loans
Balance Obtained Principal Balance
Beginning During Repayment End of

Description of Period Period for Period Pariod
A) School
Construction $ - % - % - % -

B) Equipment - - - -

C) Service
Vehicles - - - -

D) Other

E) Pupil
Transportation o - - -

Total Loans $ - $ - $ - % -
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Schedule 9B

Conseil scolaire francophone provincial
de Terre-Neuve-et-Labrador

Schedule of Current Maturities
Year Ended June 30, 2010

Description Year1 Year2 Year3d Year4 Year5
A) Schoal
Construction &8 - &% - 8% - 8% - 8§ -

B) Equipment - - - - -

C) Service
Vehicles - - - - -

D) Other - - = - -

E) Pupil
Transportation - - = - -

Total
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Schedule 8C

Conseil scolaire francophone provincial
de Terre-Neuve-et-Labrador

Schedule of Interest Expense
Year Ended June 30, 2010

[~
(=]
-t

2009
Description
Capital

School Construction $ S -
IEC S -

Equipment S -

Service Vehicles = -

Other
Energy Management - -

Total Capital - -

Current - Operating Loans - -
- Supplier Interest - -
- Charges - -

Total Current = -

Total Interest Expense $ - 3 -
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Conseil scolaire francophone provincial
de Terre-Neuve-et-Labrador

Pupil Services - Federal Funding
Year Ended June 30, 2010

Language recaovery

Student Support Services

Artists in residence / Art & cultural programming

Teacher recruitment and retention
Promotion / Student recruitment
Principal & teacher training
Technology support services
Federal project administration
School programs coordination
French professional services
Distance education

Educational Resource Centre
Adult language recovery

Support for school improvement projects

Board members lraining
French recuperation Center

Total - Pupil services - federal funding

174

Schedule 10

2010 Budget 2009
229,797 232500 190,000
177,012 170,000 176,600
151,532 141,895 53,798
75938 100,000 107,607
87,578 80,800 112,485
67,512 67,200 58,034
45600 45,600 .
38,400 38,400 37,500
34409 32500 163,260
31,340 30,000 42,240
180 15,000 25,377
10,411 15,000 18,898
- 2,100 4,000
3,963
4,199
: - 26,795
_$ 949709 $ 970,995 $1,024,756




Conseil scolaire francophone provincial
de Terre-Neuve-et-Labrador

Community programs - Federal Funding
Year Ended June 30, 2010

Family resource centers

After school programs

Family literacy - Port-au-Port peninsula
Saturday school pragram

Summer Project

Total community programs
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Schedule 11

2010 Budget 2009
$ 85500 $§ 85500 $§ 81,906
53,900 53,900 35,997
30,500 30,500 30,514
6,000 6,000 12,848
- 12,400
$ 175900 §$ 175,900 $ 173,665




Conseil scolaire francophone provincial
de Terre-Neuve-et-Labrador

Supplementary Information
Year Ended June 30, 2010

. Cash

Current
Cash on Hand and in Bank
Cash on Hand
Bank - Current
- Savings
- Teachers' Payroll
- Non Teachers' Payroll
- Coupon (Debenture)
- Other (Petty Cash)

Capital
Cash on Hand and in Bank
Cash on Hand
Bank - Current
- Savings
- Other

Total Cash on Hand and in Bank

. Short Term Investments

Current
Term Deposits
Canada Savings Bonds

Other

- Canada Treasury Bills

- Mutual Funds

- Balance in Broker account

- Guaranteed Investment Certificate
Capital

Term Deposits
Canada Savings Bonds
Other

Total Short Term Investments
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84,020 (63,205)

84,020 (63,205)

206,000 306,000

$ 206,000 $ 306,000



3.

Conseil scolaire francophone provincial

de Terre-Neuve-et-Labrador

Supplementary Information
Year Ended June 30, 2010

Prepaid Expenses

Current
Insurance
Municipal Service Fees
Supplies
Other
- Workers' Compensation Commission
- Salaries
- Teachers in-service - advance
- Student transportation contracts
- Board meetings - advance
- Rental - damage deposit
- Travel advances
- Other
Capital
Other

Total prepaid expenses

177

2010 2009
$ - 3 >
13,753 13,638
937
2,010 -
2,368 7,717
1,700

2,507

553 348
7,562
$21,191 § 31,802
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CREDIT UNION DEPOSIT GUARANTEE CORPORATION
Financial Statements
Year Ended December 31, 2010
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Directors of Credit Union Deposit Guarantee Corporation

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of Credit Union Deposit Guarantee Corporation,
which comprise the balance sheet as at December 31, 2010, and the statements of income and retained
earnings and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. | conducted
my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that | comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.
Opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Credit Union Deposit Guarantee Corporation as at December 31, 2010, and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles.

St. John's, NL
March 7, 2011 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT
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Credit Union Deposit Guarantee Corporation

Balance Sheet
December 31, 2010

2010 2009
ASSETS
Cash 29,011 175,244
Marketable securities (Note 3) 5,459,822 5,238,888
Accounts receivable 797 2,072
Interest receivable 74,466 70,673
Harmonized sales tax recoverable 25,344 23,828
Prepaid expenses 2,983 2,981
Capital assets (Note 4) 14,723 12,610
5,607,146 5,526,296
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Accounts payable 239,242 179,384
RETAINED EARNINGS 5,367,904 5,346,912
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 5,607,146 5,526,296

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

w yi Director

Director
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Credit Union Deposit Guarantee Corporation
Statement of Income and Retained Earnings
Year Ended December 31, 2010

2010 2009
REVENUE
Assessments $ 1,109,032 $ 1,024,069
Bonding insurance 275,759 300,427
Interest 117,697 211,826
Other 1,250 650
1,503,738 1,536,972
EXPENSES
Salaries and wages 578,083 503,990
Bonding Insurance 224,670 250,124
Travel 48,184 39,906
Training 32,645 65,143
Rental 31,791 31,333
Meetings and conventions 28,162 36,710
Professional fees 19,314 14,899
Office 18,205 13,585
Telephone 15,073 12,315
Data access costs 12,480 11,330
Advertising and promotion 11,011 8,664
Directors fees 7,375 9,375
Amortization 4,113 3,516
Vehicle - 10,836
1,031,106 1,011,726
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS 472,632 525,246
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES) (368) (2,915)
NET INCOME 472,264 522,331
RETAINED EARNINGS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 5,346,912 5,279,250
5,819,176 5,801,581
ASSISTANCE TO CREDIT UNIONS (451,272) (454,669)

RETAINED EARNINGS - END OF YEAR $ 5,367,904 $ 5,346,912
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Credit Union Deposit Guarantee Corporation

Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended December 31, 2010

2010 2009
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 472,264 $ 522,331
Items not affecting cash:
Amortization of capital assets 4,113 7,266
Loss on disposal of assets 368 2,915
476,745 532,512
Changes in other items:
Accounts receivable 1,275 (1,431)
Interest receivable (3,793) (563)
Accounts payable 59,857 108,086
Prepaid expenses (2) 1,069
Harmonized sales tax receivable (1,516) 843
55,821 108,004
Cash flow from operating activities 532,566 640,516
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of capital assets (6,853) (6,297)
Proceeds on disposal of capital assets 260 7,078
Purchase of marketable securities (2,614,652) (1,210,851)
Redemption of marketable securities 2,393,718 874,625
Cash flow used by investing activities (227,527) (335,445)
FINANCING ACTIVITY
Dividends paid (451,272) (454,669)
DECREASE IN CASH FLOW (146,233) (149,598)
Cash - beginning of year 175,244 324,842
CASH - END OF YEAR $ 29,011 $ 175,244
CASH FLOWS SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Interest received $ 3,793 $ 563
Interest paid $ - $ -
Income taxes paid $ - $ -
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CREDIT UNION DEPOSIT GUARANTEE CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended December 31, 2010

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

The Credit Union Deposit Guarantee Corporation (the "Corporation") is established as a corporation
without share capital under the provisions of Section 133 of the Credit Union Act.

2. OTHER SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Cash

Cash consists of balances with banks.
Financial instruments

Classification

A financial instrument is a contract that establishes a financial asset for one party and a financial
liability or equity instrument for the other party. CICA Handbook Section 3855 establishes a
framework for the recognition and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities. All
financial instruments have been classified either based on the type of instrument or the Corporation's
intention regarding the instrument, as described below:

Held for Trading

Financial assets classified as held for trading are typically acquired for resale prior to maturity or
designated as held for trading.They are measured at fair value on the balance sheet date. Fair
value fluctuations including interest earned, interest accrued, gains and losses realized on
disposal and unrealized gains and losses are included in investment income. Cash and cash
equivalents have been classified as held-for-trading.

Financial liabilities designated as held for trading are those non-derivative financial liabilities that
the Corporation elects to designate on initial recognition as instruments that it will measure at fair
value through other interest expense.These are accounted for in the same manner as held for
trading assets.The Corporation has not designated any non-derivative financial liabilities as held
for trading.

Held to Maturity

Held to maturity financial assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and a fixed maturity, other than loans and receivables, that an entity has the positive
intention and ability to hold to maturity.These assets are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method. The Corporation has classified its investments as held to maturity.

Available for Sale

Available for sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as
available for sale, or that are not classified as loans and receivables, held for trading, or held to
maturity. Except as mentioned below, available for sale financial assets are carried at fair value
with unrealized gains and losses included in accumulated other comprehensive income until
realized when the cumulative gain or loss is transferred to other income. Available for sale
financial assets that do not have quoted market prices in an active market are recorded at cost.
Interest on interest bearing available for sale financial assets is calculated using the effective
interest method. No financial assets have been classified as available for sale.

(continues)
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CREDIT UNION DEPOSIT GUARANTEE CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended December 31, 2010

2,

OTHER SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are recorded at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
Amortized cost is a reasonable estimate of the fair value of these instruments.

Other Liabilities

Other liabilities, such as bank indebtedness and accounts payable and accrued liabilities, are
recorded at amortized cost using the effective interest method and include all financial liabilities
other than derivative instruments. Amortized cost is a reasonable estimate of the fair value of
these instruments

Transaction Costs

Transaction costs are expensed as incurred.

Fair Values

The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount of consideration that would be agreed upon in
an arm's length transaction between knowledgeable willing parties who are under no compulsion to
act. Fair values are determined by reference to quoted bid or asking prices in an active market. In the
absence of an open market, the Corporation determines fair values based on internal or external
valuation models such as discounted cash flow analysis or using observable market-based inputs.

Effective Interest Method

The Corporation uses the effective interest method to recognize interest income or expense,
premiums or discounts earned or incurred for financial instruments.

Capital assets

Capital assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization. Capital assets are amortized over
their estimated useful lives at the following rates and methods:

Computer equipment 30% declining balance method
Furniture and fixtures 20% declining balance method

The Corporation regularly reviews its capital assets to eliminate obsolete items.

Capital assets acquired during the year but not placed into use are not amortized until they are placed
into use.

Severance pay

Severance pay, which is included with accounts payable and accrued liabilities, is accrued for all
employees for whom the right to such compensation is vested.

(continues)
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CREDIT UNION DEPOSIT GUARANTEE CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended December 31, 2010

2. OTHER SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

The Corporation recognizes assessment revenue based on a percentage of insured deposits of
individual credit unions operating within the Province of Newfoundland & Labrador. Interest revenue
is recognized based on the investment interest collected and accrued during the year, and bonding
revenue is recognized based on a percentage of individual credit unions' assets plus a $60,000 fee
that is allocated to the Newfoundland and Labrador credit unions based on a pre-determined formula.

Assistance to credit unions

Assistance to credit unions is recorded only when it can be reasonably determined by the Corporation
that such a payment will be required and when the Board of Directors has assessed the
reasonableness of such a charge and authorized the assistance as a commitment of the Fund. The
determination of the assistance requires the exercise of judgement because the precise amount,
method and timing of such assistance is dependent on future events. The amount of actual
assistance paid and possible future assistance is disclosed in the financial statements.

Pension costs

Employees of the Corporation other than the Chief Executive Officer are included in the Public
Service Pension Plan of the Government of Newfoundland and Labrador. Contributions to the plans
are required from both the employees and the Corporation. The annual contributions for pension are
recognized in the accounts on a current basis. Contributions to this plan totalled $27,089 (2009-
$26,234).

The Corporation also contributed to a private registered retirement savings plan for the Chief
Executive Officer based on a percentage of his annual salary. Contributions to this plan totalled
$7,423 (2009- $6,605.)

Future income taxes

The liability method of tax allocation is used in accounting for income taxes. Under this method,
future tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between the financial reporting
and tax basis of assets and liabilities, and measured using the substantially enacted tax rates and
laws that will be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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CREDIT UNION DEPOSIT GUARANTEE CORPORATION

Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended December 31, 2010

3. MARKETABLE SECURITIES

2010 2009
Concentra Financial, 1.80% $ 5,000,000 $ 5,235,851
Concentra Financial, .70% 459,712 1,927
Credit Union Central of Nova Scotia shares - 1,000
Newfoundland and Labrador Credit Union share 100 100
Concentra shares 10 10
$ 5,459,822 $ 5,238,888

4. CAPITAL ASSETS
2010 2009
Cost Accumulated Net book Net book

amortization value value
Computer equipment $ 74,249 §$ 67,296 $ 6,953 $ 7,811
Furniture and fixtures 32,570 24,800 7,770 4,799
$ 106,819 $ 92,096 $ 14,723 $ 12,610

5. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Corporation's objectives with respect to capital management are to safeguard the entity's ability
to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to operate as a deposit insurance provider for
the Newfoundland & Labrador credit unions, including the provision of stabilization funds as needed.

The Corporation defines its capital as the balance in the Deposit Guarantee Fund Balance; the
changes in this balance for 2010 are presented in the Statement of Income and Fund Balance.

6. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Corporation's financial instruments are comprised of cash, investments, receivables and

accounts payable.

Cash is reported at fair value on the balance sheet. Receivables and accounts payable are reported
at amortized cost which approximates fair value due to their short term nature. Investments are
reported at amortized cost using the effective interest method which approximates their fair value.
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CREDIT UNION DEPOSIT GUARANTEE CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended December 31, 2010

7. NATURE AND EXTENT OF RISK ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Corporation is exposed to the following risks as a result of holding financial instruments: credit
risk, market risk and liquidity risk. The following is a description of those risks and how the
Corporation manages the exposure to them.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a financial loss will occur due to the failure of a counterparty to discharge its
contractual commitment or obligation to the Corporation. Credit risk may arise principally through its
investments included in the Corporation's asset portfolio.

The Corporation manages this risk by making investments in accordance with the investment policy
established by the Board of Directors which permits the Corporation to invest in high quality, liquid
short-term investments. Equity investments are not permitted.

Market Risk

Market risk arises from changes in interest rates on investments in its portfolio that affect the
Corporation's net interest income. The Corporation's goal is to maximize its return on these portfolios,
without taking unreasonable risk and retaining a high degree of liquidity.

The Corporation manages this risk by investing in securities that are not susceptible to significant
changes in rates of return to the Corporation caused by changes in market values of the investments.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of having insufficient financial resources to meet the Corporation's funding
requirements.

The Corporation's liquidity policies and practices include the measurement and forecast of cash flows
and maintenance of a pool of high quality liquid assets.

8. COMMITMENTS

The Corporation has entered into a lease agreement for office space which expires June 30, 2011.
The amount of the annual rent payable is $30,895.
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CREDIT UNION DEPOSIT GUARANTEE CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended December 31, 2010

9. INCOME TAXES

The Corporation has the following non-capital losses available which can be used to reduce future
years' taxable income.

Year of Expiry Amount
2014 438,667
2015 362,558
2026 350,333
2027 255,907
2028 387,654
2029 434,292
2030 575,432

$ 2,804,843

The undepreciated capital cost for income tax purposes of the Corporation's depreciable assets
exceeds the net book value by $115,766.

The potential income tax benefits associated with these items have not been recognized in the
financial statements

Credit union assessments and assistance are excluded from the calculation of taxable income.
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Eastern Education Foundation Inc.
Financial Statements
December 31, 2010

B
S,

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT
MANAGEMENT CONSULTANT
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Eastern Education Foundation Inc.
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Surplus

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010 2009
Revenue
Charitable Donations $ 68,758 $ 45631
In Kind Contributions - Music and Computer Equipment 7,274 4,560
In Kind Contributions - Auction Items 3,727 8,509
Donations received from other registered charities 1,369 2,837
Fundraising Revenue 176,521 129,313
57,649 190,850
Expenditures
Charitable work 150,204 126,501
Operating expenses 31,645 20,947
Fundraising expenditures 88,939 __ 65823
Total expenditures 270,788 213,271
Deficit for the year $__(13.139) $__(22.421)
Schedule of Changes to Net Equity
Total Unrestricted Total
Restricted
Funds (Note 2)
Equity, beginning of year $ 69,309 $ 122,988 $ 192,297
Deficit for the year (13,139) (13,139)
Contributions Received 13,000 13,000
Equity, end of year $ 82309 $ 109,849 $_ 192,158
The accompanying notes are an integral part
of these financial statements.
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Eastern Education Foundation Inc.

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010 2009
Cash provided From (Used For):
Operating activities
Surplus (Deficit) for the year $ (13,139) $ (22,421)
Changes in
Receivables 22,866 (30,173)
Payables and accruals (8,365) 19,883
1,362 (32,711)
Increase (Decrease) in cash 1,362 (32,711)
Cash,beginning of year 97,246 129,957
Cash, end of year $___98608 $ 97,246

The accompanying notes are an integral part

of these financial statements.
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Eastern Education Foundation Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2010

Nature of Operations
The Eastern Education Foundation Inc. is an incorporated body under the Corporations Act of
Newfoundland & Labrador with the following purpose:

The provision of grants and other aid to the Eastern School District, its schools, and any other
charitable organization whose mandate includes the advancement of education for the support,
enhancement, maintenance, and improvements of the educational, environmental, welfare of
counselling, nutritional and other programs for the benefit of students or the improvement of
teaching and leaming in District schools, facilities and equipment.

1. Significant Accounting Policies

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Association considers deposits in banks as cash and cash equivalents.

Contributed Materials and Services

The Foundation recognizes contributions of materials and services when their fair value can be
reasonably estimated.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Financial instruments consist of cash and short-term investments, accounts receivable, and
accounts payable and accrued liabilities. The Foundation has evaluated the fair values of these
financial instruments based on the current interest rate environment, related market values and
current pricing of financial instruments with comparable terms. The carrying value of the
financial instruments is considered to approximate fair value unless otherwise indicated.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the Foundation's financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition

Donations and public support is reflected when funds are received. All other revenues are
recorded on the accrual basis.

2. Restricted Funds
These amounts are invested in short term interest bearing guaranteed investment certificates.

The principal portion of these Funds can not be used for operations but only the accrued interest
is eligible to be disbursed for scholarships. Interest accrued on these funds as at December 31,
2010 was $5,468 and is disclosed as accounts receivable.
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Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Ever
Green Environmental Corporation as at March 31, 2011, and its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

L
Velole € Toucks LLP
Chartered Accountants
June 30,2011
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EVER GREEN ENVIRONMENTAL CORPORATION

Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
Year ended March 31, 2011

2011 2010
h $
Revenue
Recycling - beverage containers 3,213,790 3,295,361
Cost of sales 1,855,294 1,946,647
1,358,496 1,348,714
Fibre 226,417 197,006
Grant 119,400 59,400
Recycling - products 71,656 67,078
Ever Green donations 57,725 54,516
Rent 52,314 43,302
Amortization of deferred capital contributions 24,520 25,880
Other 11,141 18,144
Marketing 10,400 9,343
1,932,069 1,823,383
Expenditures
Salaries and benefits 1,216,828 1,197,591
Operations 300,084 326,550
Amortization of capital assets 178,603 188,364
Business development 68,472 70,893
Property management 53,642 54,318
Fibre 44,808 31,951
Recycling - products 38,945 40,333
Transportation 24,038 19,376
Administration 17,569 21,919
Marketing and communication 11,768 14,604
Interest on long-term debt 9,887 13,451
Amortization of intangible assets 5,000 4,277
1,969,644 1,983,627
Excess of expenditures over revenue (37,575) (160,244)
Net assets, beginning of year 1,176,226 1,336,470

Net assets, end of year 1,138,651 1,176,226
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EVER GREEN ENVIRONMENTAL CORPORATION
Statement of Financial Position

March 31, 2011
2011 2010
$ $
Assets
Current assets
Cash (Note 8) 145,701 74,001
Term deposits 416,246 410,148
Accounts receivable 92,210 124,257
Inventories 9,042 17,464
Prepaid expense 27,301 22,668
690,500 648,538
Capital assets (Note 4) 2,192,264 2,272,874
Intangible assets (Note 5) 34,825 19,955
' 2,917,589 2,941,367
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 125,956 287,096
Recycling accounts payable 435,612 277,210
Due to Eastern Regional Health Authority (Note 6) 80,610 -
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 7) 76,024 47,691
718,202 611,997
Due to Eastern Regional Health Authority (Note 6) 335,298 335,298
Long-term debt (Note 7) 475,231 543,119
Deferred capital contributions (Note 9) 250,207 274,727
1,778,938 1,765,141
Net assets ‘ 1,138,651 1,176,226
2,917,589 2,941,367

Commitments (Note 10)

Approved on behalf of the Board: \7//
AL irector '/ A Director
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EVER GREEN ENVIRONMENTAL CORPORATION

Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended March 31, 2011
2011 2010
$ $
Operating activities
Excess of expenditures over revenue (37,575) (160,244)
Adjustments for:
Amortization of capital assets 178,603 188,364
Amortization of intangible assets 5,000 4,277
Amortization of deferred capital contributions (24,520) (25,880)
Changes in non-cash operating working capital (Note 8) 33,098 83,110
154,606 89,627
Investing activities
Purchase of capital assets (97,993) (169,299)
Purchase of intangible assets (19,870) (6,025)
Increase in term deposits (6,098) (5,613)
(123,961) (180,937)
Financing activities
Proceeds from long-term debt 96,483 60,294
Repayments of long-term debt (136,038) (150,820)
Increase in due to Eastern Regional Health Authority 80,610 (60,000)
Increase in deferred capital contributions - 5,000
41,055 (145,526)
Net change in cash 71,700 (236,836)
Cash, beginning of year 74,001 310,837
Cash, end of year 145,701 74,001
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EVER GREEN ENVIRONMENTAL CORPORATION

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31,2011

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Ever Green Environmental Corporation (the “Corporation™) is a registered charitable organization
incorporated to raise funds for public awareness and provide programs and services for mental
health clients in Newfoundland and Labrador. The Health Care Foundation governs the operations

of the Corporation.

As a registered charity, the Corporation is exempt from income taxes and may issue charitable
donation receipts.

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Corporation has elected to use the exemption provided by the Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants (“CICA”) permitting not-for-profit organizations not to apply Sections 3862 and 3863
of the CICA Handbook which would otherwise have applied to the financial statements of the
Corporation for the year ended March 31, 2011. The Corporation applies the requirements of
Section 3861 of the CICA Handbook.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles for not-for-profit organizations, the more significant of which are as follows:

Revenue recognition
The Corporation recognizes revenue as follows:

a) Service and product revenue is recognized when all significant contractual obligations are
satisfied and collection is reasonably assured.

b) Grant revenue is recognized when related expenditures have been incurred.

c¢) Donations are recognized in the accounts of the Corporation in the year received.

d) Rent revenue is recognized in accordance with the terms of the lease agreement and when

collection is reasonably assured.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
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EVER GREEN ENVIRONMENTAL CORPORATION

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2011

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Capital assets

Capital assets are recorded at cost and are amortized over their estimated useful lives at the
following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements Term of lease

Motor vehicles 30%, declining balance
Equipment 20%, declining balance
Computer equipment 30%, declining balance
IT system 10%, declining balance
Building 5%, declining balance
Baler 10 years, straight line
Web site 3 years, straight line

Intangible assets
Intangible assets are recorded at cost and amortized on a straight-line basis over five years.
Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are generally classified and measured as follows:

Asset/Liability Classification Measurement
Cash Held for trading Fair value
Term deposits Held for trading Fair value
Accounts receivables Loans and receivables Amortized cost
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities Other liabilities Amortized cost
Due to Eastern Regional Health Authority Other liabilities Amortized cost
Long-term debt Other liabilities Amortized cost

Other balance sheet accounts do not meet the criteria to be considered financial instruments.

Capital contributions

Capital contributions are recorded as deferred contributions and amortized to income at the same
rates as amortization expense related to the capital assets purchased. Capital contributions for non-
depreciable capital assets are recorded as direct increases in net assets.

Use of estimates

In preparing the Corporation’s financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reporting amounts of revenue and expenses
during the year. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

346



EVER GREEN ENVIRONMENTAL CORPORATION
Notes to the Financial Statements

March 31,2011

FUTURE ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The CICA has issued a new accounting framework applicable to Canadian not-for-profit
organizations. Effective for fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2012, not-for-profit
organizations will have to choose between International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”)
and the accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations with accounting standards for private
enterprises as the underlying framework, whichever suits them best. Early adoption of these
standards is permitted. The Corporation currently plans to adopt the new accounting standards for
not-for-profit organizations for its fiscal year beginning on April 1, 2012. The impact of this
transition has not yet been determined.

4. CAPITAL ASSETS

2011 2010
Accumulated Net Book Net Book
Cost Amortization Value Cost Value
$ $ $ $ $
Land 250,000 - 250,000 250,000 250,000
Building 1,487,303 221,489 1,265,814 1,487,303 1,332,436
Leasehold improvements 265,945 240,895 25,050 258,058 38,503
Motor vehicles 112,066 94,229 17,837 112,066 25,482
Equipment 446,725 201,023 245,702 358,271 187,423
Baler 388,987 87,522 301,465 388,987 340,364
Computer equipment 62,421 51,286 11,135 60,770 13,548
IT system 112,647 38,178 74,469 112,647 82,743
Web site 4,750 3,958 792 4,750 2,375
3,130,844 938,580 2,192,264 3,032,852 2,272,874
5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
2011 2010
Accumulated Net Book Net Book
Cost Amortization Value Cost Value
$ $ $ $ $
US patent 20,304 - 20,304 10,035 10,035
Patent and tradename 29,089 15,326 13,763 19,487 8,782
Copyright 1,296 778 518 1,296 778
Trademark 3,060 2,820 240 3,060 360
53,749 18,924 34,825 33,878 19,955
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EVER GREEN ENVIRONMENTAL CORPORATION

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2011

5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
Assets relating to the US patent are not yet ready for use and therefore have not been amortized in
the current year.

6. DUE TO EASTERN REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
The long-term balance due to Eastern Regional Health Authority is non-interest bearing with no

payments required from April 2011 to March 2012. It has not been determined when repayments
will resume.

7. LONG-TERM DEBT

2011 2010
$ $

Atlantic Canada Opportunities Agency ("ACOA") loan,
non-interest bearing with principal payments of $1,000 per
month from April 2010 to January 2011 and $3,833 per
month thereafter. 202,667 220,334
Multi-Materials Stewardship Board ("MMSB") term loan,
non-interest bearing with principal repayments of $446 per
month, maturing in 2015. 21,391 26,760
Bank of Nova Scotia term loan, prime plus 0.75%,
repayable in monthly payments of $2,056 plus interest,
matures in 2029 and is secured by land and building with a
net book value of $1,582,436. 214,827 327,829
ACOA loan, no set terms of repayment 112,370 15,887

551,255 590,810
Current portion 76,024 47,691

475,231 543,119
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EVER GREEN ENVIRONMENTAL CORPORATION

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2011

7. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Annual principal repayments of long-term debt over the next five years are as follows:

$
2012 76,024
2013 76,024
2014 76,024
2015 76,024
2016 70,672
Thereafter 176,487

8. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Restricted cash

Cash in the amount of $2,414 (2010 - $2,252) is restricted for various programs at the Waterford
Hospital.

Change in non-cash operating working capital

2011 2010
$ $
Accounts receivable 32,047 80,885
Prepaid expense 8,422 (3,000)
Inventories (4,633) 9,466
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (2,738) (4,241)
33,098 83,110

Interest paid 9,887 13,451
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EVER GREEN ENVIRONMENTAL CORPORATION

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2011

10.

11.

12.

DEFERRED CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

Deferred capital contributions represent the unamortized portion of restricted contributions related
to capital assets, which will be reported in revenue in future accounting periods. Deferred capital
contributions are amortized on a basis and at a rate consistent with the amortization for the related
capital asset purchased.

The changes in deferred capital contributions balance for the year are as follows:

2011 2010
$ $
Balance, beginning of the year 274,727 295,607
Grants received - 5,000
Amortization (24,520) (25,880)
Balance, end of the year 250,207 274,727

COMMITMENTS

The Corporation has entered into commitments for the lease of space, which will result in the
following future expenditures:

$
2012 104,658
2013 14,063

CREDIT FACILITY
The Corporation has access to lines of credit totaling $150,000 in the form of revolving demand

loans and/or bank overdrafts at its financial institution. These lines of credit remained unused at
March 31, 2011 (2010 - $Nil) and bear interest at the rate of prime plus 1.5%.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The capital structure of the Corporation consists of net assets and long-term debt. The
Corporation’s objective when managing capital is to ensure it maintains adequate capital to support
its continued operations.

The Corporation is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements, other than those

disclosed in Note 8.
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EVER GREEN ENVIRONMENTAL CORPORATION

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2011

13.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT
Financial risk factors

The Corporation has exposure to credit, liquidity and market risk. The Corporation’s Board of
Directors has overall responsibility for the oversight of these risks and reviews the Corporation’s
policies on an ongoing basis to ensure that these risks are appropriately managed. The source of
risk exposure and how each is managed is outlined below:

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss associated with a counterparty’s inability to fulfill its payment
obligation. The Corporation’s credit risk is primarily attributable to receivables, cash and term
deposits. Management believes that the credit risk with respect to accounts receivable is not

material.

The Corporation’s cash and term deposits are distributed among bank and investment accounts.
The Corporation does not expect any liquidity issues or credit losses on those instruments.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Corporation will not be able to meet its financial obligations as
they become due. As at March 31, 2011 the Corporation had cash and term deposits of $561,947.

To the extent the Corporation does not believe it has sufficient liquidity to meet current
obligations, consideration will be given to obtaining additional funds through third party funding,
assuming this could be obtained.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates
and price risk will affect the Corporation’s excess of expenditures over revenues or the value of its
financial instruments. The Corporation is not subject to foreign exchange risk.

i) Interest rate risk

The Corporation’s term deposits and certain long-term debt bear interest at variable rates. The
cash flow exposure of interest rate risk is not significant.

ii) Price risk

The prices of the Corporation’s fibre purchases and fibre sales are exposed to fluctuations in
the quoted commodity price depending on general market conditions.
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EVER GREEN ENVIRONMENTAL CORPORATION

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2011

13.

14.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Fair value

The fair value of the Corporation’s financial instruments, with the exception of the amounts due to
Eastern Regional Health Authority and the long-term debt, approximate their carrying values due
to the short-term maturity and normal credit terms of the instruments. The amount due to Eastern
Regional Health Authority and the ACOA loans are non-interest bearing and, therefore, do not
reflect fair value. The Bank of Nova Scotia term loan is considered to approximate fair value.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year's presentation.
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Deloltte & Touche LLP
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www.deloltte.ca

Auditors’ Report

To the Directors of
Janeway Children’s Hospital Foundation

We have audited the combined funds statement of financial position of the Janeway Children’s Hospital
Foundation as at March 31, 2010 and the combined funds statements of operations, changes in net assets and
cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Foundation’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

Except as explained in the following paragraph, we conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial staternent presentation.

In common with many charitable organizations, the Foundation derives its revenue from the general public in
the form of donations and other fundraising activities, the completeness of which is not susceptible to
satisfactory audit verification. Accordingly; our verification of these revenues was limited to the amounts
recorded in the records of the Foundation and we were not able to determine whether any adjustments might
be necessary to revenue, excess of revenue over expenditure, assets and net assets.

In our opinion, except for the effect of adjustments, if any, which we might have determined to be necessary
had we been able to satisfy ourselves concerning the completeness of revenues referred to in the preceding
paragraph, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Foundation as at March 31, 2010 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Telodle 2 Budu Lef

Chartered Accountants
May 7, 2010

Membre de / Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
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JANEWAY CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL FOUNDATION

Notes to the Combined Funds Financial Statements
March 31, 2010

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

The Janeway Children's Hospital Foundation (the “Foundation”) is a registered charitable
organization created to raise funds to meet the financial needs of the Janeway Children’s Health
and Rehabilitation Centre for capital projects, equipment, programs and research directly related to
the health and welfare of Newfoundland and Labrador children, while promoting public awareness

of these needs.

As a registered charity, the Foundation is exempt from income tax and may issue charitable
donation receipts.

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Effective April 1, 2009, the Foundation adopted the amendments issued by the Canadian Institute
of Chartered Accountants (“CICA™) section 1540 “Cash flow statement”, section 4400 “Financial
statement presentation by not-for-profit organizations”, section 4430 “Capital assets held by not-
for-profit organizations™, section 4460 “Disclosure of related party transactions by not-for-profit
organizations”, and Section 4470 “Disclosure of allocated expenses by not-for-profit
organizations™. The application of these standards had no impact on the financial statements of the

Foundation.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Foundation has elected to use the exemption provided by the CICA permitting not-for-profit
organizations not to apply Sections 3862 and 3863 of the CICA Handbook which would otherwise
have applied to the financial statements of the Foundation for the year ended March 31, 2010. The
Foundation applies the requirements of Section 3861 of the CICA Handbook.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles for not-for-profit organizations, the more significant which are as follows:

Fund accounting
The Foundation applies the restricted fund method of accounting for contributions.

The General Fund contains all of the operating assets, liabilities, revenue and expenditures of the
Foundation related to the organization’s mandate to raise funds to meet the financial needs of the
Janeway Children’s Health and Rehabilitation Centre for capital projects, equipment, programs
and research. :

The In-Memoriam Fund represents donations received from donors for a designated purpose.
These donations are held in bank accounts or invested until disbursed for specific projects.
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JANEWAY CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL FOUNDATION

Notes to the Combined Funds Financial Statements
Mareh 31,2010

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fund accounting (continued)

The Endowment Fund represents donations received from donors specifically for the Little Red
Wagon Endowment Fund along with any bequests and in-memoriam donations that have not been
designated for a specific purpose. These donations are held in bank accounts and are disbursed
based on recommendations from the Board.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from donations is recognized in the accounts of the Foundation in the year in which it is
received. Contributions received for expenditures for a future period are deferred and recognized
as revenue when the expenditure is incurred. All other revenues are recognized as earned and
when collectability is reasonably assured.

In-kind confributions are recorded when fair value is determinable.

Capital contributions

Capital contributions are recorded as deferred contributions and amortized to income on the same
basis as the amortization expense related to the capital assets purchased. Capital contributions for
capital assets that are not amortized are recorded as direct increases in net assets.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, balances with banks and short-term investments
with maturities of three months or less.

Capital assets

Capital assets, which consist of equipment, are recorded at cost and amortized on a straight-line
basis over five years.

Vacation pay and other benefits

Vacation pay and other benefits are recorded in the accounts of the Foundation on the accrual
basis.

Severance pay

Severance pay is accounted for on an accrual basis and is calculated based upon years of service
and current salary levels for employees who have a vested right to receive such a payment. No
provision for severance pay is recorded for any employee who does not have a vested right to the
payment., The amount is payable when the employee ceases employment with the Foundation.
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JANEWAY CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL FOUNDATION

Notes to the Combined Funds Financial Statements
March 31, 2010

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Pension cosis

Employees of the Foundation are members of the Public Service Pension Plan and the Government
Money Purchase Plan (the “Plans”) administered by the Government of Newfoundland and
Labrador. Contributions to the Plans are required from both the employees and the Foundation,
The annual contributions for pensions are recognized in the accounts on a current basis and
amounted to $16,467 for the year ended March 31, 2010 (2009 - $17,925),

Financial instruments

The Foundation’s financial assets and liabilities are generally classified and measured as follows:

i Asset/Liability Classification Measurement
Cash and cash equivalents : Held for trading Fair value
‘ Investments Held for trading Fair value
Receivables Recetvables Amortized cost
Payables and accruals, due to
Eastern Regional Health Authority Other liabilities Amortized cost

The Foundation has determined that it does not have derivatives or embedded derivatives.

‘ Use of estimates

In preparing the Foundation’s financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted
‘ accounting principles, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and Habilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements, and reported amounts of revenue and expenditure during the year.
| Actual results could differ from these estimates.
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JANEWAY CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL FOUNDATION
Notes to the Combined Funds Financial Statements

March 31, 2010
4, INVESTMENTS
2010 2009
$ $
Guaranteed investment certificate, due May 9, 2010,
bearing interest at 4.0% 269,317 258,959
Guaranteed investment certificate, due November 27,
2010, bearing interest at 3.9% 526,439 506,678
Guaranteed investiment certificate, due November 27,
2011, bearing interest at 4.32% 635,180 608,877
Guaranteed investment certificate, due December 3,
2011, bearing interest at 2.5% 302,425 -
Guaranteed investment certificate, due December 3,
2012, bearing interest at 3.15% 303,049 -
Guaranteed investment certificate, due December 3,
2013, bearing interest at 3.75% 506,037 -
Managed money portfolio 1,202,380 1,140,815
Guaranteed investment certificates, matured during
the year - 1,340,216
3,744,827 3,855,545
Current portion 795,756 1,340,216
2,949,071 2,515,329
Included in interest and other investment income is an unrealized gdin of $61,656.
5. CAPITAL ASSETS
2010 2009
Accumulated Net Book Net Book
Cost Amortization Value Cost Value
$ B $ $ $
Equipment 138,849 138,849 - 138,849 -

362



JANEWAY CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL FOUNDATION

Notes to the Combined Funds Financial Statements
March 31, 2010

0. DONATIONS

2010 2009
$ $
Eastern Regional Health Authority
Janeway Children’s Health and Rehabilitation Centre 333,197 1,006,395
Janeway Research 130,000 269,469
463,197 1,275,864
Other
Bursaries and fellowships 75,000 15,000
Dr. H. Bliss Murphy Cancer Care Foundation 50,000 50,000
RBC Reach Out Program 40,000 50,000
Other Hospital Funding 25,000 28,992
Rainbow Riders program 7,500 7,500
Other miscellaneous 3,150 -
Asthma program 2,626 . 700
Environmental grant 2,210 354
Pastoral Care/Rehab Teen Group 800 500
Memorial University 766 -
207,052 153,046
670,249 1,428,910
7. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Changes in non-cash operating working capital
2010 2009
S $
Receivables (31,602) (2,951)
Prepaid expenses 59,409 (69,053)
Payables and accruals 8,957 (14,675)
Due to Eastern Regional Health Authority (26,390) 20,645
10,374 (66,034)

8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions between the Foundation and Eastern Regional Health Authority (“Eastern Health™)

are measured at their exchange value.
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JANEWAY CHILDREN’S | HOSPITAL FOUNDATION

Notes to the Combined Funds Financial Statements
March 31,2010

10.

11.

COMMITMENTS

During the year, the Foundation committed to disburse $1,800,000 (2009 - $1,230,000) to Eastern
Health to benefit the Janeway Children’s Health and Rehabilitation Centre, depending on the
financial results of the Foundation for the year. During the year, $514,689 (2009 - $1,275,864) of
current and previously cominitted funds were disbursed. The outstanding commitments from the
current and prior years of approximately $3,550,503 relating to capital equipment and research are
expected to be disbursed in future fiscal years of the Foundation.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The capital structure of the Foundation consists of net assets. The Foundation’s objective when
managing capital is to ensure it maintains adequate capital to support its continued operations.

The Foundation is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Foundation has exposure to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Foundation’s Board
of Directors has overall responsibility for the oversight of these risks and reviews the Foundation’s
policies on an ongoing basis to ensure that these risks are appropriately managed. The source of
risk exposure and how each is managed is outlined below.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of oss associated with a counterparty’s inability to fulfil its payment
obligation. The Foundation’s credit risk is primarily attributable to receivables, cash, and
investments. Management believes that the credit risk with respect to receivables is not material.
The Foundation’s cash and investinents are distributed among bank and investments accounts, The
Foundation does not expect any liquidity issues or credit losses on these instruments.

Ligquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Foundation will not be able to meet its financial obligations as
they become due. As at March 31, 2010 the Foundation had cash and cash equivalents of
$1,305,459 available in the general fund.

To the extent that the Foundation does not believe that it has sufficient liquidity to meet current

obligations, consideration will be given to obtaining additional funds through third party financing,
assuming this can be obtained.
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JANEWAY CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL FOUNDATION

Notes to the Combined Funds Financial Statements
March 31, 2010

11.

12.

FINANCTAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates,
and price risk will affect the Foundation’s net earnings or the value of its financial instruments,
The Foundation is not subject to foreign exchange risk.

(i) Interest rate risk

The Foundation’s investments bear interest at fixed rates. Consequently, the cash flow
exposure to interest rate risk is not significant.

(ii) Price risk

The value of the Foundation’s managed money portfolio and shares are exposed to
fluctuations in the quoted market price depending on a number of factors, including general
market conditions, and company specific operating performance.

Fair value

The fair value of the Foundation’s financial instruments approxumate the carrying value due to the
short-term maturity and normal credit terms of those instruments, except for investments which are

recorded based on quoted market value.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year's presentation.
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JANEWAY CHILDREN'S HOSPITAL FOUNDATION
Schedule 1 - Miracle Network Telethon Expenses
Year ended March 31, 2010

2010 2009
5 $
Advertising 15,900 8,601
Affiliation fees 38,330 36,366
" Broadcasting costs 103,752 135,555
General administration 22,694 43,516
Merchandise 74,686 33,794
Office and miscellaneous 2,085 2,010
Postage 17,489 17,194
Printing 10,225 13,061
Professional fees 13,371 27,110
Telephone 9,853 2,098
Travel 12,697 14,014

321,082 333,319

366



JANEWAY CHILDREN'S HOSPITAL FOUNDATION

Schedule 2 - Christmas Appeal Expenses
Year ended March 31, 2010

2010 2009
5 $
Contractual services 8,730 8,197
Office and miscellansous 706 1,880
Postage 13,235 12,512
Printing 10,621 9,721
- 1,386

Promotional costs

33,292 33,696
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Deloitte & Touche LLP
10 Factory Lane

Fort William Building
St. John's NL A1C 6H5
Canada

Tel: (709) 576-8480
Fax: (709) 576-8460
www.deloitte.ca

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Directors of the
Janeway Children’s Hospital Foundation

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Janeway Children’s Hospital Foundation,
which comprise the combined funds statement of financial position as at March 31, 2011, and the
combined funds statement of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
qualified audit opinion.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

The Foundation derives revenue from donations and other fundraising revenues, the completeness of
which is not susceptible to satisfactory audit verification. Accordingly, our verification of these revenues
was limited to the amounts recorded in the records of the Foundation and we were not able to determine
whether any adjustments might be necessary to revenue, excess of revenue over expenditure, assets and net
assets.

Membre de / Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
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Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Janeway Children’s Hospital Foundation as at March 31, 2011 and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Delolle 2 Toucke LLf

Chartered Accountants
August 2, 2011
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JANEWAY CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL FOUNDATION

Notes to the Combined Funds Financial Statements
March 31, 2011

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

The Janeway Children's Hospital Foundation (the “Foundation™) is a registered charitable
organization created to raise funds to meet the financial needs of the Janeway Children’s Health
and Rehabilitation Centre for capital projects, equipment, programs and research directly related to
the health and welfare of Newfoundland and Labrador children, while promoting public awareness

of these needs.

As a registered charity, the Foundation is exempt from income taxes and may issue charitable
donation receipts.

2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Foundation has elected to use the exemption provided by the Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants (“CICA”) permitting not-for-profit organizations not to apply Sections 3862 and
3863 of the CICA Handbook which would otherwise have applied to the financial statements of
the Foundation for the year ended March 31, 2011. The Foundation applies the requirements of
Section 3861 of the CICA Handbook.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles for not-for-profit organizations, the more significant of which are as follows:

Fund accounting
The Foundation applies the restricted fund method of accounting for contributions.

The General Fund contains all of the operating assets, liabilities, revenue and expenditure of the
Foundation related to the organization’s mandate to raise funds for the Janeway Children’s Health

and Rehabilitation Centre.

The In-Memoriam Fund represents donations received for designated purposes. These donations
are held in bank accounts or invested until disbursed.

The Endowment Fund represents donations received for the Little Red Wagon Endowment Fund
along with any bequests and in-memoriam donations that have not been designated for a specific
purpose. These donations are held in bank accounts and are disbursed based on recommendations

of the Board.
Revenue recognition

Revenue from donations is recognized in the accounts of the Foundation in the year in which it is
received. Contributions received for expenditures for a future period are deferred and recognized
as revenue when the expenditure is incurred. All other revenues are recognized as earned when
collectability is reasonably assured.

In-kind contributions are recorded when fair value can be reasonably estimated.
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JANEWAY CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL FOUNDATION

Notes to the Combined Funds Financial Statements
March 31, 2011

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Capital contributions

Capital contributions are recorded as deferred contributions and amortized to income on the same
basis as the amortization expense related to the capital assets purchased. Capital contributions for
capital assets that are not amortized are recorded as direct increases in net assets.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, balances with banks and short-term investments
with maturities of three months or less.

Capital assets

Capital assets, which consist of equipment, are recorded at cost and amortized on a straight-line
basis over five years.

Vacation pay and other benefits

Vacation pay and other benefits are recorded in the accounts of the Foundation on the accrual
basis.

Severance pay

Severance pay is accounted for on an accrual basis and is calculated based upon years of service
and current salary levels for employees who have a vested right to receive such a payment. No
provision for severance pay is recorded for any employee who does not have a vested right to the
payment. The amount is payable when the employee ceases employment with the Foundation.

Pension costs

Employees of the Foundation are members of the Public Service Pension Plan and the Government
Money Purchase Plan (the “Plans”) administered by the Government of Newfoundland and
Labrador. Contributions to the Plans are required from both the employees and the Foundation.
The annual contributions for pensions are recognized in the accounts on a current basis and
amounted to $16,368 for the year ended March 31, 2011 (2010 - $16,467).
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JANEWAY CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL FOUNDATION

Notes to the Combined Funds Financial Statements
March 31, 2011

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments

The Foundation’s financial assets and liabilities are generally classified and measured as follows:

Asset/Liability Classification Measurement
Cash and cash equivalents Held for trading Fair value
Investments Held for trading Fair value
Receivables Loans and receivables Amortized cost
Due from Eastern Regional Health Authority =~ Loans and receivables Amortized cost
Payables and accruals, due to

Eastern Regional Health Authority Other liabilities Amortized cost

The Foundation has determined that it does not have derivatives or embedded derivatives.

Use of estimates

In preparing the Foundation’s financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements, and reported amounts of revenue and expenditure during the year.
Actual results could differ from these estimates.

3. FUTURE ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENT

New accounting framework

The CICA has issued a new accounting framework applicable to Canadian not-for-profit
organizations. Effective for fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2012, not-for-profit
organizations will have to choose between International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”)
and the accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations with accounting standards for private
enterprises as the underlying framework, whichever suits them best. The Foundation currently
plans to adopt the new accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations for its fiscal year
beginning on April 1, 2012. The impact of this transition has not yet been determined.
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JANEWAY CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL FOUNDATION

Notes to the Combined Funds Financial Statements
March 31, 2011

4. INVESTMENTS

2011 2010
$ $

Guaranteed investment certificate, due November 27,
2011, bearing interest at 4.32% 662,620 635,180
Guaranteed investment certificate, due December 3,
2011, bearing interest at 2.5% 309,986 302,425
Guaranteed investment certificate, due December 3,
2012, bearing interest at 3.15% 312,595 303,049
Guaranteed investment certificate, due April 14,
2012, bearing interest at 2.55% 1,127,051 B
Guaranteed investment certificate, due December 2,
2012, bearing interest at 2.70% 453,959 -
Guaranteed investment certificates, due May 18,
2013, bearing interest at 3.4% 772,167 -
Guaranteed investment certificate, due December 3,
2013, bearing interest at 3.75% 525,015 506,037
Managed money portfolio 1,600,803 1,202,380
Guaranteed investment certificate, matured
during the year - 269,317
Guaranteed investment certificate, matured
during the year - 526,439

5,764,196 3,744,827
Current portion 972,606 795,756

4,791,590 2,949,071

Included in interest and other investment income in the Statement of Operations is an unrealized

gain of $398,423 (2010 - $61,656).
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JANEWAY CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL FOUNDATION

Notes to the Combined Funds Financial Statements

March 31,2011

-

DONATIONS
2011 2010
§ $
Eastern Regional Health Authority
Janeway Children’s Health and Rehabilitation Centre 807,067 333,197
Janeway Pediatric Research and Family Resource Centre 761,658 -
Janeway Research 92,333 130,000
Janeway Rehab Technical Aid Lending Library 20,000 -
1,681,058 463,197
Other
Memorial University 100,000 766
Bursaries and fellowships 58,500 75,000
RBC Reach Out Program 40,000 40,000
Other Hospital Funding 26,973 25,000
Rainbow Riders program 7,500 7,500
Canadian Diabetes Society 5,000 -
Asthma program 1,000 2,626
Pastoral Care/Rehab Teen Group 854 800
Dr. H. Bliss Murphy Cancer Care Foundation - 50,000
Other miscellaneous - 3,150
Environmental grant - 2,210
239,827 207,052
1,920,885 670,249
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Changes in non-cash operating working capital:
2011 2010
$ $
Receivables (65,032) (31,602)
Prepaid expenses (3,428) 59,409
Payables and accruals 9,672 8,957
Deferred contributions 4,649 -
Due to Eastern Regional Health Authority 856,497 (26,390)
802,358 10,374
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JANEWAY CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL FOUNDATION

Notes to the Combined Funds Financial Statements
March 31, 2011

10.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions between the Foundation and Eastern Regional Health Authority (“Eastern Health")
are measured at their exchange value.

COMMITMENTS

During the year, the Foundation committed to disburse $1,050,000 (2010 - $1,800,000) to Eastern
Health to benefit the Janeway Children’s Health and Rehabilitation Centre, depending on the
financial results of the Foundation for the year. During the year, $1,741,399 (2010 - $514,689) of
current and previously committed funds were disbursed. The outstanding commitments from the
current and prior years of approximately $4,148,932 relating to capital equipment and research are
expected to be disbursed in future fiscal years of the Foundation.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The capital structure of the Foundation consists of net assets. The Foundation’s objective when
managing capital is to ensure it maintains adequate capital to support its continued operations.

The Foundation is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Foundation has exposure to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Foundation’s Board
of Directors has overall responsibility for the oversight of these risks and reviews the Foundation’s
policies on an ongoing basis to ensure that these risks are appropriately managed. The source of
risk exposure and how each is managed is outlined below.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss associated with a counterparty’s inability to fulfil its payment
obligation. The Foundation’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash, investments and
receivables. The Foundation’s cash and investments are distributed among bank and investments
accounts. The Foundation does not expect any liquidity issues or credit losses on these
instruments. Management believes that the credit risk with respect to receivables is not material.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Foundation will not be able to meet its financial obligations as
they become due. As at March 31, 2011 the Foundation had cash and cash equivalents of

$604,462 available in the General Fund.
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JANEWAY CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL FOUNDATION

Notes to the Combined Funds Financial Statements
March 31,2011

10.

11.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

To the extent that the Foundation does not believe that it has sufficient liquidity to meet current
obligations, consideration will be given to obtaining additional funds through third party financing,

assuming this can be obtained.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates,
and price risk will affect the Foundation’s net earnings or the value of its financial instruments.

The Foundation is not subject to foreign exchange risk.

(i) Interest rate risk

The Foundation’s investments bear interest at fixed rates. Consequently, the cash flow
exposure to interest rate risk is not significant.

(ii) Price risk

The value of the Foundation’s managed money portfolio is exposed to fluctuations in the
quoted market price depending on a number of factors, including general market conditions,

and company specific operating performance.

Fair value

The fair value of the Foundation’s financial instruments approximate the carrying value due to the
short-term maturity and normal credit terms of those instruments. Investments are recorded at fair

value based on quoted market value.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation.
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JANEWAY CHILDREN'S HOSPITAL FOUNDATION
Schedule 1 - Miracle Network Telethon Expenses
Year ended March 31, 2011

2011 2010
$ $
Broadcasting costs 98,570 103,752
Merchandise 57,183 74,686
Affiliation fees 45,140 38,330
Advertising 40,661 15,900
General administration 27,752 22,694
Professional fees 17,841 13,371
Postage 15,854 17,489
Travel 14,962 12,697
Printing 7,727 10,225
Telephone 5,368 9,853
Office and miscellaneous 870 2,085

331,928 321,082
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JANEWAY CHILDREN'S HOSPITAL FOUNDATION
Schedule 2 - Christmas Appeal Expenses

Year ended March 31, 2011
2011 2010
3 $

Postage 13,616 13,235
Printing 10,402 10,621
Contractual services 9,755 8,730
Advertising 7,458 -
Office and miscellaneous 1,059 706

42,290 33,292
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LABRADOR - GRENFELL REGIQNAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
ST. ANTHONY INTERFAITH HOME 12 UNIT APARTMENT COMPLEX

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT
AND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2011
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Tel: 709 466 1515 B Canada LLP

Fax: 09 465 1510 2210 Memorial Drive

Wirw bdo 2 Clarerville ML A54 1R3 Canada
"l

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Trustees of
5t. Anthony Interfaith Home 12 Unit Apartment Complex

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of 3t. Anthony Interfaith Home 12 Unit
Apartment Carmplex which comprize the Statement of Financial Position as at March 31, 2011, and the
Statement of Changes in Net Assets, Statement of Revenues and Expenses and Statement of Cash Flow
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
infarmatian,

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian gensgrally accepted zccounting principles, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibllity

Cur responsibility is to express an opinion on these fingncial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requitements and plan and perforrn the audit to obtain
reasanable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement,

An audit invelves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor congiders internal control relevant to the antity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit aise includes evalualing the appropriatengss of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overal presentation of the financial statemeants,

We beliave that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Qpinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all sperating material respects, the financial
rosition of St. Anthony Interfaith Home 12 Unit Apariment Complex as at March 31, 2011 and the results
of its operations and its cash flow for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally

accepted accounting principles.
Claranvllle, Nawfoundland and Labrador
June 13, 2011 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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LABRADCOR - GRENFELL REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
ST. ANTHONY INTERFAITH HOME 12 UNIT APARTMENT COMPLEX
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AZS AT MARCH 31, 2011

2011 2010
$ $
ASSETS
Current
Cash 40,206 35315
Accounts receivable 1,161 1,087
Frepaid expenses 3,240 3,240
44707 40,652
Capital assets {Motes 2 and 3} 676,416 708,352
Crie from Newfoundland and Labrador Housing Corporation {Note 4) 65,221 5,854
Due from Newfoundland and Labrador Housing
Corparatian for replacemant reserve (Mole 8) 67 036 67,300
854,380 822 188
LIABILITIES
Cumrent
Fayables and accruals 2418 2,534
Due to Labradoer - Grenfell Regional Health Authority 104,085 44,577
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 5) 33,074 31,427
144 577 78,528
Long-term debt, net of current partion (Mote 5) 628,767 G640, 350
Replacemant reésarve fund (Note 8) 67, 038 67,300
838,380 806.188
NET ASSETS, PER ACCDMPANYING STATEMENT
Unrestricted nat assels 16,000 16,000

854,380 822,188

bf the Board:
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LABRADOR - GRENFELL REGICNAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
ST. ANTHONY INTERFAITH HOME 12 UNIT APARTMENT COMPLEX
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2011

2011
Imvested in Total Total
{apital Aszels LInresiricted 2011 2010
§ 5 $ 3
Balance, beginning of year - 16,000 16,000 16,000
Excess {deficiency) of revenues
ower EXpenses {31,935} 31935 - -
Eepayment of long-term debt 31,935 {31,935} - -

Balance, end of year - 16,000 16,000 16,000
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LABRADOR - GRENFELL REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
5T. ANTHONY INTERFAITH HOME 12 UNIT APARTMENT COMPLEX
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2011

2011 2010
Budget Actual Actual
% 5
Revenues

Rental 51,372 50, 365 h1,244
NLHC subsidy 80,541 68,133 64,591
Hydro recoveries 3180 3,180 3,140
Laundry recoveries 1,440 1,440 1,420
Other recoveries - 54 163 46 330
HST recoveries 2,400 1,161 1,097
Interest - a3 -

118,833 178,535 167,822

Expenses

Amaortization of capital assets 31,427 31,935 30,602
Heat and light 26110 27130 25,580
[nsurance 2,040 1,259 1,082
Interest and bank charges - 108 121
Interest on long-term debt 29,449 28,824 32,231
Management fees 5,340 £.000 6,000
Professional fees 2,800 2,500 2,500
Repairs, maintenance and janitorial {Note 7) 16,637 V6,781 Gh.718
Snow claaring 810 G778 658
Watar and sewer 4,320 4,320 4,320

118,233 178,535 167,822

Excess {deficiency) of revenues over axpensas - - -
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LABRADOR - GRENFELL REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
5T. ANTHONY INTERFAITH HOME 12 UNIT APARTMENT COMPLEX
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2011

2011 2010
$ %
Cash Flows
Operations:
Excess {deficiency} of revenues over expenses - -
Amaortization of capital assets 31835 30 602
31835 30,602
Changes in:
Receivables {B4} {1.087)
Payables and accruals (115} 1,814
Dus to Labrador - Grenfett Regional Health Authority 64 507 19,825
Dug to Newloundland and Labrador Housing Corporation {60 337} {2, 700)
35 926 48,404
Financing Aclivities
Principal repayments {31.935) {30,602}
MNet change in cash and cash equivalents for year 3,991 17,802
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of vear 26,15 18,513
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 40,306 36 315
Cash Supplementary
Interest paid 28.824 32,21
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LABRADOR - GRENFELL REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
ST. ANTHONY INTERFAITH HOME 12 UNIT APARTMENT COMPLEX
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2011

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

The St Anthony Interfaith Home 12 Unit Apartment Complex is sponsored by the Labrador - Grenfell
Regional Hzalth Authority 1o provide housing to low and moderate income seniors.

2. SIGMNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the St Anthony Interfaith Home 12 Unit Apartmant Complesx are in
accordance with generally accepted aceounting principles and guidslines set cut by the Newfoundland
and Labrader Housing Ceorparation {NLHC) in their operating agreements for not-for-profit housing
projacts. The following describes the maore significant policies:

Capital Asseig

Amartization is provided on land improvements and buildings at a rate equal ko the annual principal
reduction of the mortgages related to these properies. This is in accordance with the operating
agreement with NLHC.

Replacement Reserve

MLHC maimains a consalidated Replacement Reserve Fund to maintain and account for replacement
resenvg funds for not-for-profit housing groups. MLHC provides the grganizalion with an
annual statement as of March 31, 2011 indicating itz regerve balancs,

The funds in lhe replacemsnt reserve account may only be used as approved by MLHC.
Transactions in the reserve are shown in Note 6.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in canformity with Canadian gensrally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make astimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount
of assets and |jabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabifities at the date of the financial

statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the repoting period,
Actual results could differ from these estimates,

3. CAPITAL ASSETS

Accumulated
Cost Amortization 2011 2010
3 3 § 3
Land 1 - 1 1
Land improvements 20,000 - 20,000 20,000
Buidings 955,047 311,050 643,947 675,373
Equipment 17,754 5,336 12,418 12,978
982,802 316,385 676,416 708,352
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LABRADOR - GRENFELL REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
ST. ANTHONY INTERFAITH HOME 12 UNIT APARTMENT COMPLEX
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2011

4. DUE FROM {TO] NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADCR HOUSING CORPORATION

2011 2010
-3 5
Due from {to) NLHC, beginning of the Year h.884 3,184
MNet Subsidy for the Year 68,133 64,591
Payments Received during the Year (7.796) {61,201
Crue fram (k) NLHC, end of vear 66,221 5 884

5 LONG-TERM DEBT

4. 3% Newfoundland and Labrador Housing Corporation first mortgage on land and building;
repayable in equal monthly installments of $5,073, interest included, maturing Octaber 2025,

The aggregate amaunt of principal payments estimated to be required in each of the next five
years is as follows:

$
2012 33074
2013 34,528
2014 36,046
2015 37,631
2016 38,308

[nter bsid

The Authaority has received federal assistance through Canada Mortgage and Housing
Corporation pursuant to Section 56.1 of the National Housing Act to reduce operating costs,
anabling the Authority to provide housing to low and moederate income seniors. The amount
of the assistance received from Newfoundland and Labrador Housing Corporation in 2011
was 588 133 (2010 - §64,591).
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LABRADCR - GRENFELL REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
ST. ANTHONY INTERFAITH HOME 12 UNIT APARTMENT COMFPLEX

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2011

& REPLACEMENT RESERVE

Balancs. beginning
Less: Approved expenses

Balance, ending

7. REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE

Maintenance supplies
Salary

407

2011 2010
$ $
67,300 67,200
{264) -
67,036 67,300
2011 2010
$ $
66,056 35,114
10,725 10,604
76,781 65,718
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LABRADOR SCHOOL BOARD
AUDITORS' REPORT
AND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010
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LABRADOR SCHOOL BOARD

BALANCE SHEET

AS AT JUNE 30, 2010

ASSETS
Current
Cash (Supplementary Information 1)
Short-term investments (Supplementary Information 1)

Accounts receivable (Note 4)
Prepaid expenses (Supplementary Information 2)

Capital assets (Schedule 8)

LIABILITIES
Current
Bank indebtedness (Note 5)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 6)
Current maturities (Schedule 9B)
Long-term debt (Schedule 9)
Accrued support staff severance

Accrued teacher severance

Accrued executive staff paid leave (Note 8)

Contingent liabilities (Note 13)

B EQUI

Investment in capital assets (Note 9)
Board deficiency (Note 10)
Restricted fund - Labrador West School Committee (Note 7)

429

201 2009
$ $
2,708,171 243,613
510,218 3,617,944
4,975,559 5,082,781
59,516 52,552
8,253,464 8,996,890
45,629,739 44,630,690
53883200 563627580

6,664,982 7,226,568
163,500 163,500
6,828,482 7,390,068
464,742 639,659
890,145 850,319
5,935,453 5,725,965
183,068 138,227
14,301,890 14,744,238
45,639,061 44,640,012
(6,118,520) (5,880,342)
60,772 123,672
39,581,313 38,883,342
53|883,203 53‘627!580

il
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LABRADOR SCHOOL BOARD

STATEMENT OF CURRENT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND BOARD DEFICIENCY

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Current Revenues (Schedule 1)
Local taxation
Provincial Government and other grants
Donations
Ancillary services
Miscellaneous

Current Expenditures
Administration (Schedule 2)
Instruction (Schedule 3)
Operations and maintenance (Schedule 4)
Pupil transportation (Schedule 5)
Ancillary services (Schedule 6)
Interest (Schedule 9C)
Miscellaneous (Schedule 7)

Deficiency of revenues over expenditures before transfer to
capital fund, teacher severance and teacher summer pay

Transfer to Capital Fund

Net decrease in board equity from operations

Teacher severance

Teacher summer pay

Executive staff paid leave

Net decrease in board equity

Board deficiency, beginning of year (Note 10)

Adjustments (Note 10)

Board deficiency, end of year (Note 10)

Board equity (deficiency) exclusive of teacher severance, teacher

summer pay and executive staff paid leave for year:
Board deficiency per above
Add: Accrued teacher severance
Add: Summer pay - teachers (Note 6)
Add: Executive staff paid leave

Revised board equity
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2010 2009
$ $
39,496,579 42,156,714
221,540 221,276
3,461,671 5,784,276
43,179,790 48,162,266
1,866,363 1,806,134
33,911,746 38,118,770
5,316,188 5,569,955
2,382,172 2,650,117
213,675 209,119
7,953 7,743
43,698,097 48,361,838
(518,307) (199,572)
- (52»03491
(518,307) (251,611)
(209,488) (220,114)
534,458 384,102
(44,841) -
(238,178) (87,623)
(5,880,342) (5,705,493)
- (87,226)
!6,1181520! 5,880,342
(6,118,520) (5,880,342)
5,835,453 5,725,965
3,432,320 3,877,688

183,068

3,432,321
—_—_—

138,227

3,861,538
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LABRADOR SCHOOL BOARD

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN CAPITAL FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Capital Receipt

Proceeds from bank loans

School construction

Equipment

Service vehicles

Pupil transportation

Other - energy performance contracting

EIC Grants
School construction and equipment
Other

Donations

Cash receipts
Non-cash receipts
Restricted use

Sale of Capital Assets Proceeds
Land

Buildings

Equipment

Service vehicles

Pupil transportation vehicles
Other

Other Capital Revenues

Interest on capital fund investments
Premiums on debentures
Recoveries of expenditures
Insurance proceeds

Miscellaneous

Total Capital Receipts

77
78

Total

Transfer from reserve account
Transfer to/from current fund
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1,242,950

1,242,950
—_——

1,253,023

1,253,023

52,039
52,039

1,305,062
—_———
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LABRADOR SCHOOL BOARD

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN CAPITAL FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Capital Disbursements

Additions to Capital Assets

Land and sites

Building

Furniture and equipment - school
Furniture and equipment - other
Services Vehicles

Pupil transportation

Other

Principal Repayment of Loans
School construction
Equipment

Services vehicles

Other - teachers' residences

Miscellaneous Disbursements

013 Other

Total Capital Disbursements
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2010 2009
$ $
208,441 -
1,034,509 1,182,460
- 122,602
1,242,950 1,305,062
_ 1,242,950 1,305,062




LABRADOR SCHOOL BOARD
CURRENT REVENUES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Current Revenues

31 010
(B

32 010
011
011
012
013

017
021
021
022
030
031
032
033
034

33 010
012
013
014

34 010
011
015
021
022
031
032

L.ocal Taxation
School taxes

Provincial Government and Other Grants
Regular operating grants
Maintenance operating grant
Special grants (details on bottom Schedule 1)
Payroll tax
Salaries and benefits
Directors and assistant directors
Regular teachers
Student assistants
Substitute teachers
Pupil Transportation
Board owned
Contracted
Special needs
Other

Donations
Cash receipts
Non-cash receipts
Restricted use

Ancillary Services
Revenue from rental of residences
Interest
Revenues from rental of schools and facilities (net)
Internally generated funds
Cafeterias
Other

Special Grants
Fiscal Finance Agreement
Adult Basic Education
Natuashish grant
Sheshatshiu grant
Mining company
Francophone
French immerson

Grenfell

Aboriginal education and initiatives

433

SCHEDULE 1

2009 2008
$ $
7,029,401 7,061,015
807,590 509,200
2,982,086 5,426,262
639,831 585,256
26,883,336 30,023,194
636,591 711,739
1,117,657 1,047,627
2,382,173 2,218,683
442,651 297,674
221,540 221,276
36,934 60,340
43,179,790 48,162,266
2,333,468 2,324,564
111,177 132,697
11,285 566,321
95,325 1,436,261
87,500 525,000
66,030 48,000
22,023 -
71,278 112,488
184,000 280,931
2,982,086 5,426,262
e ————————— _———
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011
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017
018
019
021
022
023
024
025
026
027
028
029
031
034
035

LABRADOR SCHOOL BOARD
ADMINISTRATION EXPENDITURES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Salaries and benefits - director and assistant directors
Salaries and benefits - board office personnel
Office supplies

Replacement furniture and equipment
Postage

Telephone

Office equipment rentals and repairs
Bank charges

Electricity

Fuel

Insurance

Repairs and maintenance (office building)
Travel

Board meeting expenses

Election expenses

Professional fees

Advertising

Membership dues

Municipal taxes

Miscellaneous

Payroll tax
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SCHEDULE 2

2010 2009

$ $
607,532 585,256
834,432 826,174
28,487 20,507
33,919 25,038
6,248 11,495
46,013 34,055
12,566 5,870
5,157 5,631
2,872 2,987
- 2,257
104,857 118,261
46,174 56,355

26,553 -
42,606 43,718
29,570 32,265
22,072 21,030
1,420 1,050
1,866 460
14,019 13,725
1,866,363 1,806,134
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080
081
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090
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LABRADOR SCHOOL BOARD
INSTRUCTION EXPENDITURES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Instructional salaries (gross)
Teachers' salaries - regular

Teachers' salaries - substitute
Teachers' salaries - board paid
Teachers' salaries - student assistants

Augmentation

Employee benefits

School secretaries - salaries and benefits

Payroll tax

Other instructional salaries and benefits

Instructional materials
General supplies
Library resource materials

Teaching aids
Textbooks

Other (Note 12)

Instructional furniture and equipment

Replacement

Rentals and repairs

Instructional staff travel
Program co-ordinators
Teachers' travel
In-service and conference
Students' travel

Other instructional costs
Postage and stationery

Other - Francophone Board funds
Other - Health and Community living
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SCHEDULE 3

2010 2009
$ $

23,616,024 26,642,122
969,181 904,836
157,768 138,791
636,395 710,529
47,500 285,038
4,005,602 4,037,255
674,619 841,148
56,309 40,141
1,421,622 1,252,626
31,585,020 34,852,486
443,651 574,682
- 10,596
93,790 120,016
9,300 9,897
772,738 1,404,592
1,319,479 2,119,783
98,017 105,592
136,786 110,452
234,803 216,044
70,204 156,858
33,306 59,411
565,904 544,893
- 6,758
669,414 767,920
- 5,031
2,666 13,391
100,364 144,115
103,030 162,537
33,911,746 38,118,770
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LABRADOR SCHOOL BOARD

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE EXPENDITURES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Salaries and benefits - janitorial

Salaries and benefits - maintenance

Payroll tax

Electricity

Fuel

Municipal service fees

Telephone

Vehicle operating and travel

Janitorial supplies

Janitorial equipment

Repairs and maintenance - buildings

Repairs and maintenance - equipment

Contracted services - janitorial

Snowclearing

Other - mechanical water and sewer

Other - salaries and benefits - computer technologies
Other - maintenance occupation health and safety
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SCHEDULE 4

2010 2009
$ $

1,147,043 1,276,318
1,109,709 1,117,757
38,947 41,418
378,087 411,459
412,026 522,983
55,316 71,446
138,149 136,622
47,890 28,882
201,061 216,892
27,071 4,255
1,003,935 1,132,344
6,074 4,157
92,643 42,886
128,199 166,082
243,487 146,574
283,940 248,207
2,611 1,673
5,316,188 5,569,955
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2010 2009
$ $
54 010 Operations and Maintenance of Board Owned Fleet

011 Salaries and benefits - administration 178,800 158,385
012 Salaries and benefits - drivers and mechanics 1,432,040 1,591,445
013 Payroll tax 24,625 27,131
014 Debt repayment - interest 14,606 33,722
014 Debt repayment - principal - 126,834
017 Gas and oil 222,107 251,583
018 Licenses 23,772 20,751
019 Insurance 15,850 21,521
021 Repairs and maintenance - fleet 219,497 183,928
022 Repairs and maintenance - building 38,180 12,233
023 Tires and tubes 36,583 22,784
024 Heat and light 14,205 15,247
025 Municipal services 3,462 1,443
026 Snowclearing 12,708 18,514
027 Office supplies 2,799 1,463
029 Travel 7,938 12,832
031 Professional fees 2,603 3,799
032 Miscellaneous 3,368 2,194
033 Telephone 26,267 31,384
Rent 78,911 78,911
Occupational health and safety training 264 1,193
2,358,585 2,617,297

040 Contracted Services
041 Regular transportation 15,557 24,570
042 Handicapped 8,030 8,250
2,382,172 2,650,117

LABRADOR SCHOOL BOARD
PUPIL TRANSPORTATION EXPENDITURES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

SCHEDULE 5
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011
013
031
032

LABRADOR SCHOOL BOARD
ANCILLARY SERVICES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Ancillary Services

Operation of teachers' residence
Janitorial

Cafeterias

Other

438

SCHEDULE 6

2010 2009

$ $
213,675 209,119
213,675 209,119




57 001 Miscellaneous

LABRADOR SCHOOL BOARD
MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010
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2010

SCHEDULE 7

2009



Land and sites

12

12

12

12

12

12

210
211

220
221
222
223
224
225

230

240
241

250
251
252
253
254
255
256

260
261

Land and Sites
Pavement

Buildings

Schools
Administration
Residential
Recreation

Other - maintenance

Furniture and equipment

Vehicles
Service vehicles

Pupil Transportation
Land

Building

Vehicles - buses
Vehicles - service
Equipment

Other

Miscellaneous Capital
Other

Total Capital Assets

LABRADOR SCHOOL BOARD

DETAILS OF CAPITAL ASSETS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

SCHEDULE 8

Balance Balance
June 30, June 30,
2009 Additions Disposals 2010
$ $ $ $

173,221 57,803 - 231,024

- 150,638 - 150,638
173,221 208,441 - 381,662
36,586,838 604,875 - 37,191,713
283,947 - - 283,947
2,403,914 429,634 - 2,833,548
263,899 - - 263,899
39,538,598 1,034,509 - 40,573,107
2,852,466 - - 2,852,466
1,889,057 - 243,901 1,645,156
177,348 - - 177,348
2,066,405 - 243,901 1,822,504
44,630,690 1,242,950 243i9°1 45,629,739
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LABRADOR SCHOOL BOARD
DETAILS OF LONG-TERM DEBT
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Bank loans, mortgages and debentures, approved by the
Board and the Government of Newfoundland and Labrador

22 210 Loans Other Than Pupil Transportation

Reference Number

211 Bank Loans
Prime minus ___, repayable __ monthly, repaid

during year
212 Mortgages
, repayable $ , monthly, maturing
____, repayable $____, monthly, maturing
, repayable $____, monthly, maturing
Total 212
213 Vehicles
, repayable $____, monthly, maturing
, repayable $____, monthly, maturing
Total 213
214 Other

, repayable $ , monthly, maturing
Subtotal
216 Less: Current Maturities

Total Loans Other than Pupil Transportation

441

SCHEDULE 9

2010 2009
$ $



SCHEDULE 9
LABRADOR SCHOOL BOARD
DETAILS OF LONG-TERM DEBT
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

2010 2009
$ $
22 220 Loans - Pupil Transportation
Reference Number
221 Vehicle Bank Loans
Prime minus .25%, repayable $2,172 monthly,
maturing 2013 76,018 102,080
Prime minus .25% repayable $2,517 monthly,
maturing 2012 60,241 90,447
Prime minus .25%, repayable $1,696 monthly,
maturing 2015 106,841 127,192
Prime minus .25%, repayable $581 monthly,
maturing 2014 27,882 34,853
Prime minus .25%, repayable $3,137 monthly,
maturing 2011 29,583 78,826
Prime minus .25%, repayable $598 monthly,
maturing 2018 41,181 48,177
Prime minus .25%, repayable $2,924 monthly,
maturing 2018 286,496 321,584
Subtotal 628,242 803,159
223 Less: Current Maturities 163,500 163,500
Total Loans - Pupil Transportation 464,742 639,659

Total Long-term Debt 464,742 639,659
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Description

(A) School construction
(B) Equipment

(C) Service vehicles
(D) Other

(E) Bus acquisition
Total Loans

Less: Current Maturities

Total Loans

LABRADOR SCHOOL BOARD
SUMMARY OF LONG-TERM DEBT
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

SCHEDULE 9A

443

Balance Loans Principal Balance
June 30, Obtained Repayment June 30,
Rate 2009 During Year For Year 2010
% $ $ $ $
Prime - 0.25 803,159 - 174,917 628,242
803,159 - 174,917 628,242
163,500

464,742
o —————— ]



SCHEDULE 9B
LABRADOR SCHOOL BOARD
SCHEDULE OF CURRENT MATURITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Description 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
$ $ $ $ $

(A) School construction - . - - .
(B) Equipment - - - - -

(C) Service Vehicles - - B - .

(D) Other - - - - -
(E) Pupil transportation 163,500 129,223 93,478 69,588 58,952
Total 1635500 129,223 93,478 69,588 58,952
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SCHEDULE 9C
LABRADOR SCHOOL BOARD
SCHEDULE OF INTEREST EXPENDITURES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Description
012 Capital
School construction - .
Equipment = g
Service vehicles z -
Other - teachers' residences - .

Pupil transportation - -

Total Capital
013 Current - operating loans - 14

Current - supplier interest charges 7,953 7,729

Total current 7.953 7.743

Total Interest Expense 7,953 7,743
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110
111
112
113

113
114
115
116

210
211
212
213
214

LABRADOR SCHOOL BOARD
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Cash
Current

Cash on hand and in bank

Cash on hand

Bank - current

Bank - savings - Labrador West School Committee
- Funds in trust

Bank - teachers' payroll

Bank - teachers' payroll

Bank - non teachers' payroll

Bank - coupon (debenture)

Capital

Cash on Hand and in Bank
Cash on Hand and in Bank
Bank - current

Bank - savings

Bank - other

Total Cash on Hand and in Bank

2.

11

11

121
122
123

221
222
223

Short Term Investments

Current

Term deposits
Canada Savings Bonds
Other

Capital
Term deposits

Canada Savings Bonds
Other

Total Short Term Investments

446

2010 2009
$ $
1,000 1,000
(3,870)
- 63,982
- 182,762
2,712,076 :
(1,035) -
- (4,131)
2,708,171 243,613
510,218 3,617,044
510,218 3,617,944




11

11

141
142
143
144
144
144

241

Prepaid Expenses
Current

Insurance

Municipal services fees
Supplies

Other - WHSCC

Other - travel

Other - miscellaneous

Capital

Other

LABRADOR SCHOOL BOARD
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010
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2010 2009
$ $
6,700 =
17,400 12,270
35,416 40,282
59,516 52,552



LABRADOR SCHOOL BOARD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS

The Labrador School Board is a learning organization which is mandated to organize and
administer primary, elementary and secondary education within the school board.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a fund accounting basis
which is generally accepted for School Boards. Fund accounting can be defined as
"accounting procedures in which a self-balancing group of accounts is provided for each
fund”. Itis customary for School Boards to account separately for the current and capital
funds.

A summary of significant accounting policies adopted by the Board, relating to their use of
fund accounting, is as follows:

(a) Grants received by the Board are recorded in either the current or capital funds,
depending on their source. Grants from the Department of Education are treated as
current revenue while those from the Newfoundland and Labrador Education
Investment Corporation are mostly recorded as capital revenues.

(b) The Board does not calculate or record amortization on any of its capital assets.

(c) As aresult of the amalgamation of former school boards to form the Labrador
School Board, described below, historical cost information related to capital assets
is not always available.

In instances where the historical cost of a capital assets is unknown, only the
proceeds received on the disposition of the capital assets are credited to the capital

assets account.

If the historical cost of a capital asset is known, the disposition of the capital assets is
recorded by removing the full cost of the asset from the capital asset account.

(d) All capital expenditures financed out of current revenue funds are recorded as an
expenditure in the current account.

(e) Principal repayment of Pupil Transportation Loans are recorded as current expenditures.
All other principal repayment of bank loans are recorded as capital expenditures.
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LABRADOR SCHOOL BOARD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Severance Pay

The Board has in effect severance pay policies whereby employees are entitled to a
severance payment upon leaving employment with the Board. Under these policies, a
permanent employee who has nine (9) or more years of continuous service in the employ

of the School Board is entitled to be paid on resignation, retirement, termination by reasons
of disability, expiry of recall rights or, in the event of death, to the employee's estate,
severance pay equal to the amount obtained by multiplying the number of completed

years of continuous employment by his weekly salary to a maximum of twenty (20) weeks
pay. This liability for severance pay has been accrued in the accounts for all employees who
have a vested right to receive such payments.

Severance pay for teachers is paid through the Department of Education.

Executive staff paid leave

Executive staff paid leave is paid through the Department of Education.

Other

Effective January 1, 1997, the Labrador School Board was formed through the amalgamation
of the Labrador West Integrated School Board, the Labrador East Integrated School Board
and the Roman Catholic School Board for Labrador. The amalgamation was accounted for
using the pooling of interests method where by the assets and liabilities of each School
Board were combined to become the assets of the new Labrador School Board.

Measurement Uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the recorded amounts of revenues
and expenses during the period. Such estimates are periodically reviewed and any
adjustments necessary are reported in the period in which they become known.

Actual results could differ from these estimates.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The school board's financial instruments consist of cash, short-term investments, accounts
receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, long-term debt,

accrued support staff severance, accrued teacher severance and accrued executive staff

paid leave. Unless otherwise noted, it is management's opinion that the school board is not
exposed to significant interest, currency or credit risks arising from these financial instruments.
The fair value of these financial instruments approximates their carrying values, unless
otherwise noted.
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4.

5.

LABRADOR SCHOOL BOARD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
2010 2009
$ $
Current
11 131 Provincial Government Grant 4,126,938 4,895,384
132 Transportation . -
133 Federal Government 747,789 109,453
134 School taxes - -
136 Other School Boards - -
137 Rent - -
138 Interest - -
139 Travel advances and miscellaneous 100,832 77,944
Capital
11 231 EIC - construction grants - -
233 Local contributions - -
234 Other School Boards - -
235 Other - Department of Education - -
4,975,559 5,082,781
Less: Allowance for uncollectible Government Grants - -
4,975,559 5,082,781
—_————————— e —————
BANK INDEBTEDNESS - CURRENT
2010 2009
$ $
21 131 On operating credit - -
132 On current account - -
# -===-
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LABRADOR SCHOOL BOARD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

6. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

201 2009
$ $
Current
21 111 Trade payables 529,995 567,268
112 Accrued - liabilities 34,729 24,700
113 Accrued - interest - -
114 Accrued - wages 186,752 90,844
115 Payroll deductions 62,471 155,175
116 Retail sales tax - -
117 Deferred grants 2,418,715 2,510,893
119 Summer pay - teachers 3,432,320 3,877,688
122 Department of Education - -
Capital
21 211 Trade payables - -
212 Accrued - liabilities - -
213 Accrued - interest - -
217 Deferred grants - -
218 Other - .
6,664,982 7,226,568
—————— —————
7. RESTRICTED FUND
2010 2009
$ $
Labrador West School Committee 60,772 123,672
—_————————— P ——————— 3

The restricted surplus represents unexpended funding set aside for the benefit of the Labrador
West School Committee. The available funds must be spent in Labrador West.
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LABRADOR SCHOOL BOARD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010
ADJUSTMENT TO PRIOR YEAR
An adjustment was required to report an accrued executive staff paid leave liability for the period

ended June 30, 2010. The adjustment arose as a result of a requirement by the Department of
Education of the Government of Newfoundland and Labrador.

As a result of the adjustment, the comparative figure for the accrued executive staff paid leave
liability of $138,227 is also reported.

Adjustments to the board deficiency are disclosed in Note 10.

INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS

2010 2009
$ $
Balance, beginning, as previously reported 44,640,012 43,341,077
Transfer of operating funds to capital fund - -
Principal repayment of housing loan - -
Proceeds from bussing loans (net) - -
Addition to schools 1,242,950 1,182,460

Purchase of service vehicle - 122,603

45,882,962 44,646,140
Deduct adjustments:
Cost of assets sold
Land - -
Buildings - 6,128
Buses 243,901 -
Service vehicles - -

23 221 Balance, ending 45,639,061 44,640,012
—_—— —_———
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10.

1.

LABRADOR SCHOOL BOARD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

BOARD DEFICIENCY
2010
$
Balance, beginning (5,880,342)
As previously reported
Adjustment in current year:
Correction re prior year (Note 8) -
Transfer of deficit to North Coast Housing Program -
Other adjustments - receivables -
(5,880,342)
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures (238,178)
Balance, ending ‘6,1 18,5202
The Board deficiency is comprised as follows:
2010
$
Deficit upon amalgamation at January 1, 1997 (504,281)
Deficits that are the responsibility of the Department of
Education:
Teachers' severance (5,935,453)
Executive staff paid leave (183,068)
Surplus attributable to Board operations
since amalgamation 504,282
Board deficiency, end of year $6,1 18!5202

COMMITMENTS

At the balance sheet date, the Board has the following commitments:

2009
$

(5,705,493)

(138,227)
49,500
1,501
(5,792,719)

(87,623)
(5,880,342)

2009
$

(504,281)
(5,725,965)
(138,227)

488,131

!5,880,342!

The Board has entered into various lease agreements with estimated future payments for the

next two years as follows:

2011 36,180
2012 31,315
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LABRADOR SCHOOL BOARD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

12. OTHER INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS

2010 2009
$ $

Native Peoples 72,387 76,277
Labrador Studies 27,547 49,830
Modern Technology 124,569 210,637
Teacher Orientation - North Coast 25,864 3,470
Creative Arts Festival 16,141 30,776
Lifeskills Program 39,560 20,793
Special Projects - Housing 216,248 184,766
Innu - Sheshatshiu 19,873 186,373
Labrador North Sports Meet 30,618 31,877
Mushuau Innu Natuashish 8,748 473,735
Grenfell Library Program 149,399 111,872
Labrador West Funds 24,625 1,189
Music Supplies 5,049 3,998
Stepping Into the Future 12,110 18,999

772,738 1,404,592

13. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Lavers Inquiry is currently investigating allegations of abuse at schools formerly run by
various churches in certain parts of Labrador. The possibility or magnitude of any resulting
liability arising to the Board is not known.

A human rights complaint has been filed against the Board. A response to this complaint

has been filed on behalf of the Board. The Board is awaiting a determination by the Human
Rights Commission as to whether the complaint will be referred to a Board of Enquiry.
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14.

15.

LABRADOR SCHOOL BOARD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

OTHER

At the balance sheet date the Board was in the process of compiling information related to its
capital assets which will allow it to change its accounting policy related to the reporting of
capital assets.

When the change in the accounting policy is implemented, the Board will record amortization
of its tangible capital assets in accordance with Public Sector Accounting Board standards.

Complete information to implement this change in policy for the year ended June 30, 2010
was not available at the date of these financial statements. It is anticipated that this change
in accounting policy will be implemented for the year ending June 30, 2011.

MANAGING CAPITAL

The Board is subject to externally imposed capital management requirements pursuant to its
credit facility. These requirements are consistent with normal commercial debt terms.
Management acts to ensure that the company complies with the requirements and is not
aware of any violations that would result in the bank taking any actions against the Board.
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MARBLE MOUNTAIN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
Financial Statements

Year Ended April 30, 2011
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Tel: 709 634 1590 BDC Canada LLP
Fax: 709 634 1599 50 Main Street
www.bdo.ca Suite 300
Corner Brook NL A2H 1C4 Canada

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors of Marble Mountain Developrnent Corporation

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Marble Mountain Development Corporation,
which comprise ihe balance sheet as at April 30, 2011 and the statements of income, deficit and cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information..

Management's responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles and for such internal controls as
management. considers is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted out audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the financial statemetns are free of materfal misstatement.

An audit includes performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimaies made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the balance sheet of
Marble Mountain Development Corporation as at April 30, 2011 and the results of its income and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

The comparative figures were audited under Belanger Clarke Follett & McGettigan Chartered Accountants
whose practice now operates under BDO Canada LLP.

4
Corner Brook, Newfoundland and Labrador g Q 0 Q“" ol a 4 ,9
June 27, 2011 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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MARBLE MOUNTAIN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
Statement of Deficit
Year Ended April 30, 2011

2011 2010
Deficit - beginning of year, as restated $(14,860,239) $ (13,816,343)
Excess of expenses over revenue (163,059) (146,028)

(15,023,298)
Amortization 872,703

(13,962,371)
897,868

Deficit - end of year $ (15,896,001)

$ (14,860,239)
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MARBLE MOUNTAIN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Statement of Income
Year Ended April 30, 2011

2011 2010
Income (loss) from operations
Lift Operations (Schedule 1) $ (514,164) $ (522,489)
Rental and Repair Shop (Schedule 2) 141,740 157,849
Cafeteria (Schedufe 3) 9,271 7.147
Bar (Schedule 4) 41,276 25,647
Ski School (Schedule 5) 13,879 (1.441)
Events (Schedule 6) 42,803 83,533
Marketing (Schedule 7) (82,178) {65,448)
Marbie Villa (Schedule 8) 135,437 131,057
Operating grant 400,000 401,247
188,064 217,102
Expenses
Administration 18,110 18,612
Advertising 2,672 2,285
Bad debts 6,390 -
Board and committee meetings 5117 1,273
Communications 11,311 11,187
Directors fees (Note 12) 5,480 5715
Interest and bank charges 75,404 34,324
Interest on capital leases 21,324 28,181
Labour services 186,030 244,049
Miscellaneous 1,381 1,384
Professional fees 7,000 9,188
Travel and conference 10,904 5,932
351,123 363,130
Excess of expenses over revenue $ (163,059) $ (146,028)
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MARBLE MOUNTAIN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended April 30, 2011

2011 2010

Operating activities

Cash receipts from customers $ 2,258,156 $ 2,482,379

Cash paid to suppliers and employees {2,248,756) (3,026,370)

Interest paid (142,925) {106,799}

Cash flow used by operating activities (133,525) {650,790)
Investing activities

Purchase of capital assets {412,200) {194,229)

Proceeds on disposal of capital assets 6,700 -

Cash flow used by investing activities (405,500) {194,229)
Financing activities

Proceeds {repayment) of bank indebtedness 619,324 (620,910)

Proceeds from obligations under capital lease 28,685 11,053

Repayment of obligations under capital lease (108,480) {145,627)

Operating grant - 800,000

Capital grant - 800,000

Cash flow from financing activities 539,529 B44,516
Increase {decrease) in cash flow 504 (503)
Cash - beginning of year 6,636 7,139
Cash - end of year $ 7,140 § 6,636
Cash consists of:

Cash $ 7140 % 6,636
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MARBLE MOUNTAIN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended April 30, 2011

Description of operations

The Corporation is a "Non-Profit Devetopment Corporation” incorporated under the Corporations Act
of Newfoundland and Labrador. Its affairs are managed by a Board of Directors appointed by the
Lieutenant Governor in Council. The Province of Newfoundland and Labrador holds 100% of the
issued common shares. The Corporation is a not-for-profit organization under the Income Tax Act
and accordingly is exempt from income taxes, provided certain requirements of the Income Tax Act
are met.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Inventory

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

Capital assets

Capital assets purchased by the Corporation are accounted for at cost. Donated assets are recorded

at the estimated fair market value. Amortization is provided for on a straight-line basis over the
estimated life of the assets as follows:

Area improvements 30 years
Buildings 15-40 years
Computer equipment 3 years
Equipment under capital 10 years
lease
Furniture and fixtures 5years
Lifts 30 years
Rental equipment 3 years
Signs 5 years
Vehicles 3-20 years

Deferred charges

Deferred charges represent the unamonlized cost of purchasing uniforms for snow school instructors.
Amortization of the deferred charge is provided on the straight-line basis over 3 years and is recorded
as ski patrol expense in lift operations.

Government assistance and other contributions

Provincial government grants and other contributions related to the acquisition of capital assets are
accounted for as contributed surplus. Federal government grants and other contributions related to
the acquisition of capital assets are recorded as deferred government grants and amortized to
income in relationship to the amonization of the asset involved. Government assistance and other
contributions related to capital assets retired from service are credited against the related capital
asset in the year of retirement.

Government grants related to operations are accounted for as revenue or as a reduction of the
expense to which the grant relates.

(continues)
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MARBLE MOUNTAIN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended April 30, 2011

2.  Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

Revenue Recognition
We recognize revenues when they are earned, specifically when all the following conditions are met:

s services are provided or products are delivered to customers

+ there is clear evidence that an arrangement exists

« amounts are fixed or can be determined

» our ability to collect is reasonably assured.
Measurement uncertainty
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount
of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Such estimates
include providing for amortization of capital assets and goodwill. Actual results could differ from
these estimates.
Financial risk management objectives and policies
The corporation’s tisk management policies are part of the overall management of the entity's
operations. Management's direct involvement in day-to-day operations identifies risks and variances
from expectations leading to changes in risk management activities, requirements and actions. As
part of the overall management of the entity's operations, management considers avoidance of
undue concentrations of risk, and employs appropriate investment and credit management policies to
manage the corporation's exposure.

3. Financial instruments

The Corporation's financial instruments consist of cash, accounts receivable, bank indebtedness,
accounts payable and accrued liabilities, obligations under capital leases, and long-term debt. Unless
otherwise noted, it is management's opinion that the Corporation is not exposed to significant
interest, currency or credit risks arising from these financial instruments. The fair value of these
financial instruments approximate their carrying values, unless otherwise noted.
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MARBLE MOUNTAIN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended April 30, 2011

4. Capital assets
2011 2010
Cost Accumulated Net book Net book
amortization value value
Area improvements $ 12,322,890 $ 7,196,972 $ 5,125918 $ 5,501,363
Buildings 10,982,325 4,266,753 6,715,572 6,655,928
Computer equipment 24,307 19,644 4,663 10,891
Equipment under capital lease 910,731 351,666 559,065 618,779
Furniture and fixtures 805,334 777,446 27,888 41,281
Lifts 4,998,991 2,913,651 2,085,340 2,253,946
Rental equipment 281,705 251,385 30,320 45,155
Signs 106,540 106,540 - -
Vehicles 5,522.181 4,362,609 1,159,572 1,350,354
$ 35,955,004 $ 20246666 $ 15,708,338 § 16,477,687
5. Bank indebtedness
2011 2010
Outstanding cheques in excess of funds on deposit 3 - $ 137,384
Line of credit 1,889,203 1,132,495
$ 1,889,203 $ 1,269,879
The line of credit is authorized in the amount of $2,087,000 and bears interest at the rate of bank
prime plus 0%. It is secured by a Provincial Government guarantee and letter of indemnity and
overdraft agreement signed by the Board of Directors.
8. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
2011 2010
Trade $ 406,213 % 177,728
Harmonized sales tax payable 89,654 (3,134)
Payroll deductions payable 131,519 34,141
Wages payable 4,000 6,913
$ 631,386 ] 215,648
7. Deferred government assistance - capital assets
2011 2010
Balance, at beginning of year $ 5,498,056 $ 5,791,833
Plus: deferred government assistance received for the year 400,000 -
Less: amount transferred to income by reduction of
amortization expense for the year (302,153) {293,777)
Balance, at end of year $ 5,595903 $ 5,498,056
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MARBLE MOUNTAIN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended April 30, 2011

Government assistance and other contributions - operations
Province of Newfoundland and Labrador - Operating grant

For the year ended April 30, 2011, an administrative operating grant of $400,000 (2010 - $400,000)
was approved and received. For the year ended April 30, 2011, a capital grant of $400,000 (2010 -
$400,000) was received and recorded as deferred government assistance (2010 - contributed
surplus).

The above administrative operating grant is subject to the terms and conditions as outlined in the
contribution agreement

Obligations under capital lease

2011 2010
Alter Moneta Leasing, repaid during the year $ - $ 32,384
National Leasing, repaid during the year - 12,966
National Leasing, bearing interest at 8.45% per annum,
repayable in monthly blended payments of $6,166. The
lease matures on November 30, 2013 and is secured by a
charge over specific equipment. 171,188 228,080
National Leasing, bearing interest at 8.723% per annum,
repayable in monthly blended payments of $308. The lease
matures on December 1, 2013 and is secured by a charge
over specific equipment. 25,854 -
National Leasing, bearing interest at 3.B6% per annum,
repayable in monthly blended payments of $307. The lease
matures on December 1, 2012 and is secured by specific
aquipment. 5,315 8,722
202,357 282,152
Amounts payable within one year {74,431} {100,621)

$ 127,926 & 181,531

Future minimum capital lease payments are approximately:

2012 3 74,431
2013 78,917
2014 49,009
Total minimum lease payments ' $ 202,357

The imputed interest over this three-year period is $23,343.
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MARBLE MCOUNTAIN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended April 30, 2011

10.

Contingent liability

As at April 30, 2011, a supplier had claimed that the Corporation owed it approximately $70,005 for
services rendered. The Corporation's management feels the claim is unfounded and the likelihood of
any loss resulting therefrom is undeterminable. Therefore, the Corporation has not recorded a
provision for losses that may result from the claim.

11. Lease committments
The Corporation leases equipment under a long-term operating lease which expires in 2012. The
future minimum lease payments required under this long-term lease is approximately as follows:

2012 g 2,398

12. Related party transactions
During the year ended April 30, 2011, director's fees of $5,480 (2010 - $5,715) were paid in
aggregate to the Board of Directors of the Corporation.

13. Prior period adjustment
A prior period adjustment has been made to reflect an understatement of an accounts payable for a
Health and Post-Secondary Education Tax (HAPSET) assessment for the period of January 1, 2005
to December 31, 2008. The financial statement amounts that are presented for comparative
purposes have been restated to reflect these adjustments as follows:
Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities L3 41,041
Increase in interest and bank charges expense 4.455)
Net increase in 2010 deficit, beginning of year 36,586
2010 deficit, beginning of year, as previously reported 13,779,757
Net increase in deficit from prior period adjustment 36,586
2010 deficit, beginning cf year as restated $ 13,816,343

14. Long term debt

2011 2010
Department of Innovation, Trade and Rural Development,
non-interest bearing and repayable in annual installments
based on 20% of available cash flow. Due 2015. % 300,000 $ 300,000
Amounts payable within one year - {13,967)

3 300,000 § 286,033

(continues)
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MARBLE MOUNTAIN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended April 30, 2011

14.

Long term debt (continued)

Principal repayment terms are approximately:

2015 $ 300,000
$ 300,000

The above long term debt is secured by a chattel mortgage on specific equipment. Long term debt
repayments required to meet retirement provisions are based on available cash flow which is defined
as net profit plus amortization less principal payments on long-term debt and capital leases. The
Corporation has until 2015 to repay the loan in full.

15,

Capital management

The corporation's capital consists of shareholder's equity. The corporation's primary objectives in
managing its capital consist of safeguarding its ability to continue as a going concern and sourcing
sufficient capital to provide its services. The corporation's primary policy in regards to managing
capital is a requirement that committed future expenditures do not exceed current capital resources.
The corporation’s primary process for managing capital consists of the ongoing assessment of
current capital resources against budgeted events and administrative expenditures. The corporation
is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. There have been no changes in the
corporation's objectives for managing capital or the definition thereof as compared to the previous
year.
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MARBLE MOUNTAIN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
Lift Operations
Year Ended April 30, 2011

(Schedule 1)

2011 2010
Revenue
Lift tickets $ 524,524 § 524,662
Season passes 488,047 560,428
Children's centre 6,634 9,068
Facilities rental 1,552 3,280
Miscellaneous - Lifts 4,046 1,340
1,024,803 1,098,778
Expenditures
Children's centre 15,284 14,863
Communications 11,296 15,264
Management contract 112,000 109,564
Equipment rental 11,806 14,989
Heating and electricity 144,045 129,299
Insurance 116,191 98,542
Interest and bank charges 43,009 40,443
Labour services 406,873 363,539
Lift repairs 104,462 160,373
Maintenance
Building 47,229 37,888
Slopes 33,211 64,149
Miscellaneous 11,671 38,630
Municipal fees 12,000 33,385
Security 299 299
Ski patrol 75,883 78,811
Snowclearing 30,395 11,943
Snowmaking
Electricity 109,902 126,499
Labour services 31,851 79,084
Equipment maintenance 59,491 68,624
Supplies 21,668 27,966
Vehicle operating
Repairs 77,203 58,808
Fuel 55,337 45,168
Uniforms 7,861 3,137
1,538,967 1,621,267
Loss from operations $ (514,164) 8§ (522,48%)
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MARBLE MOUNTAIN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
Rental and Repair Shop (Schedule 2)
Year Ended April 30, 2011

2011 2010
Revenue $ 203,878 % 219,773
Expenditures
Communications 294 490
Equipment rental - 890
Labour services 59,508 58,234
Miscellaneous - 93
Supplies 2,336 2,217
62,138 61,924

Income from operations $ 141,740 % 157,849
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MARBLE MOUNTAIN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Cafeteria
Year Ended April 30, 2011

(Schedule 3)

2011 2010
Revenue 5 214,728 § 226,927
Cost of sales 99,340 119,662
Gross profit 115,388 107,265
Expenditures
Communications 411 269
Labour services 96,482 85,857
Misceilaneous 295 167
Repairs and maintenance 298 3,838
Supplies 8,631 9,987
106,117 100,118
Income from operations $ 9,271 3 7,147
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MARBLE MOUNTAIN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Bar (Schedule 4)
Year Ended April 30, 2011
2011 2010
Revenue 139,549 § 129,244
Cost of sales 47,491 59,997
Gross profit 92,058 69,247
Expenditures

Communications 170 274
Entertainment 6,141 6,000
Labour services 33,068 27,020
Licenses and fees - 2,311
Repairs and maintenance 2,454 821
Secuity 867 1,536
Special events 5,669 4,805
Supplies 2,413 833
50,782 43,600

Income from operations 41,276 § 25,647
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MARBLE MOUNTAIN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Ski School {Schedule 5)
Year Ended April 30, 2011
2011 2010
Revenue $ 118,391 3 127,987
Expenditures

Communications 233 324
Computer lease - 153
Krunchers Club - 1,198
Labour services 99,977 103,090
Miscellaneous 1,114 1,190
Supplies 1,373 2,169
Training 1,815 745
Uniforms - 20,559
104,512 129,428

Income (loss) from operations $ 13,879 (1,441)
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MARBLE MOUNTAIN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Events (Schedule 6)
Year Ended April 30, 2011
2011 2010

Revenue $ 190,240 5 224,266

Cost of sales 42,462 33,911

Gross profit 147,778 190,355
Expenditures

Communications 1,078 845

Interest and bank charges 3,188 3,851

Labour services 89,419 97,831

Maintenance 4,271 511

Miscellaneous 3,409 2,544

Supplies 3,610 1,240

104,975 106,822

Income from operations $ 42,803 3 83,533
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MARBLE MOUNTAIN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Marketing
Year Ended April 30, 2011

{Schedule 7)

2011 2010
Revenue
Marketing revenues - Sponsorships 20,307 § 40,578
Marketing revenues - Advertising 24,405 118,447
44,712 160,025
Expenditures
Advertising
Internet 8,673 3,000
Marketing campaign 2,986 -
Print 8,883 13,361
Radio 4,097 32,860
Television 22,311 85,869
Communications 3,146 2,840
Complimentary Marble Villa rooms 179 8,045
Labour services 61,210 50,765
Mernbership fees 3,120 882
Office and postage 129 76
Ski shows and famifiarization tours 6,250 6,289
Supplies 5,872 6,543
Travel and meetings 34 -
UK/International marketing - 3,833
126,890 225473
Loss from operations (82,178) 3 (65,448)
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MARBLE MOUNTAIN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
Marble Villa (Schedule 8)
Year Ended April 30, 2011

2011 2010
Revenue 3 296678 % 287,290
Expenditures
Cable television 4,224 4,814
Common area expenses - 6,995
Communications 5,507 5,227
Heat and light 36,597 33,008
. Housekeeping 33,562 31,346
Insurance 6,116 11,904
Labour services 25,116 22,688
Marketing 5,114 4,124
Miscellaneous 575 459
Repairs and maintenance 27,850 21,015
Security wages 3.486 6,458
Supplies 13,094 8,104
161,241 156,233

Income from operations 3 135437 B 131,057
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Regents of
Memorial University of Newfoundland

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Memorial
University of Newfoundland [the “University”] which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at March 31, 2011 and the consolidated statements of
operations, changes in net deficiency and cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audit is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Memorial University of Newfoundland as at March

31, 2011 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

éfvmt 4 MLLP

St. John’s, Canada Chartered Accountants
July 7, 2011
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Memorial University of Newfoundland Statement 1

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION
As at March 31
[thousands of dollars]
2011 2010

ASSETS
Current
Cash and cash equivalents 12,693 29,970
Restricted cash /note 4] 4,702 2,758
Short-term investments 92,870 66,038
Accounts receivable 64,691 47,311
Accrued interest receivable 3,654 2,848
Inventory and prepaid expense 6,400 6,192
Total current assets 185,010 155,117
Long-term receivable 1,991 2,991
Investments /note 5] 90,973 81,612
Capital assets, net /note 6] 193,776 176,466

471,750 416,186

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONS AND NET DEFICIENCY

Current
Bank indebtedness /note 7] 16,531 17,681
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 53,412 29,637
Deferred revenue 32,966 20,379
Current portion of employee future benefits [note 8/ 14,856 13,608
Current portion of long-term debt /note 9] 303 733
Total current liabilities 118,068 82,038
Long-term debt [note 9] 346 373
Derivative liability [note 7] 1,644 1,795
Employee future benefits /note 8/ 135,291 118,093
Total liabilities 255,349 202,299
Deferred contributions /note 10] 238,257 220,541
Net deficiency
Net assets restricted for endowment purposes 66,548 61,992
Unrestricted net deficiency (88,404) (68,646)
Total net deficiency (21,856) (6,654)
471,750 416,186
See accompanying notes
Contingencies /note 13]
On behalf of the B

0he

Chair of the Board’of Regents hair of the Finance Committee
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Memorial University of Newfoundland

Statement 2

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

Year ended March 31
[thousands of dollars]

REVENUE
Government grants
Student fees

Other revenue

Amortization of deferred capital contributions

Sales and services
Investment income /note 5]

EXPENSES

Salaries

Employee benefits

Materials and supplies
Repairs and maintenance
Scholarships, bursaries and awards
Utilities

Amortization of capital assets
Employee future benefits
Travel and hosting
Externally contracted service
Other operating expenses
Professional fees

Equipment rentals

Interest expense

Derivative liability gain
External cost recoveries

Excess of expenses over revenue

See accompanying notes
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2011 2010
402,958 352,439
59,174 57,056
32,879 32,577
22,229 21,773
16,065 16,778
11,343 13,754
544,648 494,377
286,192 264,949
83,654 51,911
34,336 37,123
28,285 20,437
24,225 22,952
22,552 19,804
22,110 22,051
18,523 36,686
16,280 14,330
15,348 14,776
13,041 11,002
11,044 9,974
4,595 2,866
821 889
(151) (1,664)
(17,696) (18,303)
563,159 50,783
(18,511) ~(15,406)




Memorial University of Newfoundland

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES

Statement 3

IN NET DEFICIENCY
As at March 31
[thousands of dollars]
Restricted for
Endowment
Purposes Unrestricted 2011 2010

Balance, beginning of year 61,992 (68,646) (6,654) 6,683
Excess of revenue over expenses

(expense over revenue) 1,247 (19,758)  (18,511) (15,406)
Endowment contributions 3,309 - 3,309 2,069
Balance, end of year 66,548 (88,404)  (21,856) (6,654)

See accompanying notes
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Memorial University of Newfoundland

Statement 4

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended March 31
[thousands of dollars)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Excess of expenses over revenue
Items not affecting cash:
Amortization of capital assets
Net increase in deferred contributions
related to expenses of future periods
Increase in long-term portion of employee
future benefits
Increase in current portion of employee future benefits
Amortization of deferred capital contributions
Loss on disposal of capital assets
Decrease in derivative liability
Decrease in long-term receivable
Unrealized gain on investments
Change in non-cash working capital
Cash provided by operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital assets acquired

Increase in restricted cash
Increase in short-term investments
Increase in investments

Cash used in investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Decrease in bank indebtedness
Endowment contributions

Addition to deferred capital contributions
Decrease in long-term debt

Cash provided by financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents during the year

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Supplementary Information
Interest paid
See accompanying notes
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2011 2010
(18,511) (15,406)
22,110 22,051
3,142 7,843
17,198 35,343

1,248 1,212
(22,229) (21,773)
508 517
(151) (1,665)
1,000 -
(6,000) (9,746)
17,968 8,427
16,283 26,803
(40,245) (31,755)
(1,944) (2,758)
(26,832) (5,239)
(3,361) (10,083)
(72,382) (49,835)
(1,150) (1,347)
3,309 2,069
36,803 33,779
(140) (132)
38,822 34,369
(17,277) 11,337
29,970 18,633
12,693 29,970
821 889




Memorial University of Newfoundland
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2011

1. AUTHORITY AND PURPOSE

Memorial University of Newfoundland [the “University”] is a corporation operating under the authority of
the Memorial University Act. It is a comprehensive research university offering a full range of
undergraduate, graduate and continuing studies programs. The academic governance of the University is
vested in the Senate. The University is a not-for-profit entity, governed by a Board of Regents, the
majority of whom are appointed by the Province of Newfoundland and Labrador. The University is a
registered charity under the /ncome Tax Act (Canada) and, accordingly, is exempt from income taxes,
provided certain requirements of the Income Tax Act (Canada) are met.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles [GAAP]. The significant accounting policies are summarized as follows:

Use of estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with Canadian GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. Estimates are reviewed periodically and, as adjustments become necessary, they are reported in
operations in the period during which they become known.

Consolidated financial statements

These financial statements have been prepared on a consolidated basis, reporting the operations and
financial position of the University and the following related not-for-profit organizations:

C-CORE

The Canadian Centre for Fisheries Innovation [CCFI]

Genesis Group Inc.

The Memorial University of Newfoundland Botanical Garden Incorporated
Memorial University Recreation Complex [MURC]

Western Sports and Entertainment Inc.

Campus Childcare Inc.

Newfoundland Quarterly Foundation

Edutech Services Inc.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of cash, treasury bills and bankers’ acceptances. Investments
with original maturities of three months or less are classified as cash equivalents.
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Revenue recognition

The University follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions, which include donations and
government grants. Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when received or receivable if the
amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured. Contributions
externally restricted for purposes other than endowment are deferred and recognized as revenue in the year
during which related expenses are recognized. Contributions of capital assets are recorded at fair market
value at the date of the contribution and deferred and amortized to operations on the same basis as the
related asset. Endowment contributions are recognized as direct increases in the net assets in the year
during which they are received. Revenues from contracts, sales and student fees are recognized when the
goods or services are provided and collection is reasonably assured.

Contributed services

Volunteers, including volunteer efforts from the staff of the University, contribute an indeterminable
number of hours per year to assist the University in carrying out its service delivery activities. The costs
that would otherwise be associated with these contributed services are not recognized in these consolidated
financial statements as their fair value cannot be determined.

Capital assets

Purchased capital assets are recorded at cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at fair value at the date of
acquisition. Repairs and maintenance expenditures are charged to expenses. Betterments which extend the
estimated life of an asset are capitalized.

The University’s permanent art collection is expensed as incurred and the value of donated art is not
recognized in these consolidated financial statements.

Capital assets are amortized using the following rates and methods. Half a year’s amortization is taken in
the year of acquisition and no amortization is taken in the year of disposal.

Buildings 8% declining balance
Furniture and equipment 20% declining balance
Computers 30% declining balance
Banner finance 20% declining balance
Vehicles 30% declining balance
Library collection 10 years straight-line
Inventory

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

The amount of inventories recognized as an expense during the year amounted to $12.7 million [2010 —
$12.5 million].
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Investment income

Investment income in the consolidated statement of operations includes interest, dividends, realized and
unrealized gains and losses as well as related expenses.

Employee future benefits

Pension plan

The employees of the University participate in a defined benefit pension plan [the “Plan”] administered
under the Memorial University Pensions Act with any deficiencies being funded by the Province of
Newfoundland and Labrador. Payments to the Plan consist of contributions from employees and from the
University as prescribed in the Pension Benefits Act (1997) [PBA]. In addition, where the Plan experiences
a solvency deficiency, the employer is required to contribute an amount sufficient to liquidate the
deficiency within five years of the solvency valuation date. The University’s contributions to the Plan are
recorded as an expense in the consolidated statement of operations. The assets and obligations of the Plan
are not recorded in the University’s consolidated financial statements.

The Plan is being funded in accordance with the March 31, 2010 actuarial valuation. The special payment
required in the 2011/2012 fiscal year in respect of the going concern deficiency identified in the 2010
valuation amounts to $18.9 million. With respect to the solvency deficiency identified in the 2010
valuation, the University was exempt from the associated funding obligation under the PBA up to
December 31, 2010. The exemption had been in place since 2002 and application has been made to have it
continued. In the absence of the exemption, the University is required to fund the solvency deficiency,
effective January 1, 2011. The special payment due in respect of the period January 1, 2011 to March 31,
2011 is $13.0 million and has been expensed to employee benefits in the consolidated financial statements.
The special payment due in respect of the solvency deficiency for the 2011/2012 fiscal year will be $60.0

million.

The most recent valuation of the Plan was prepared as at March 31, 2011 for internal management purposes
by Eckler Ltd. This valuation disclosed a solvency deficiency of $279.3 million and a going concern
deficiency of $317.5 million at March 31, 2011. Under the PBA, a going concern deficiency must be
funded over a period of not more than 15 years while a solvency deficiency is to be funded over a
maximum five-year period. The going concern deficiency of $317.5 million includes $77.4 million in
respect of past service costs related to the introduction of indexing in 2004. This indexing liability is being
financed under a special PBA provision through both employee and employer contributions over the
remaining period of 33.25 years. In accordance with the PBA, the balance of the going concern deficiency,
namely $240.1 million, would normally be liquidated over a period of not more than 15 years. If Plan
funding were based on the March 31, 2011 valuation, the first annual payment in respect of this balance
would be $20.6 million.

Other benefits

Post-employment

In addition to the University’s pension plan previously discussed, the University also has defined
benefit plans for other post-employment benefits. These benefits are actuarially determined using the
projected benefit method prorated on service and administration’s best estimate of salary escalation,
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retirement ages of employees and escalation in covered benefit expense outlays. Gains (losses) are fully
recognized in the current year. These benefits include:

Supplemental Retirement Income Plan [SRIP]
Voluntary Early Retirement Income Plan [VERIP]
Other post-employment benefits [include severance, group life insurance and health care benefits]

Vacation
Accrued vacation for employees represents vacation earned but not yet taken as at year-end. It is

expected that accrued vacation will be taken in the next fiscal year.

Additional disclosure is provided in note 8.

Agency obligations

The University acts as an agent which holds resources and makes disbursements on behalf of various
unrelated groups. The University has no discretion over such agency transactions. Resources received in
connection with such agency transactions are reported as liabilities and subsequent distributions are
recorded as decreases to these liabilities.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are utilized by the University in the management of interest rate exposure
related to its bank indebtedness. The University may also enter into foreign exchange forward contracts to
eliminate the risk of fluctuating foreign exchange rates on future commitments. The University does not
utilize derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

The University enters into interest rate swaps in order to reduce the impact of fluctuating interest rates on
its floating rate bank indebtedness. These swap agreements require the periodic exchange of payments
without the exchange of the notional principal amount on which the payments are based.

Derivative financial instruments are classified as held-for-trading and carried at fair value with the change
in fair value being recorded on the consolidated statement of operations.

Financial instruments
The University applies the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants [CICA] Handbook Section 3861,

Financial Instruments — Disclosure and Presentation. The disclosures required by Section 3861 are
provided in note 12.
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3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

Impact of adopting future accounting policies

Recent accounting pronouncements that have been issued but are not yet effective and have a potential
impact on the University are as follows:

Assessment of strategic direction of financial reporting standards for not-for-profit organizations

In November 2010, the Accounting Standards Board of the CICA issued Part III of the CIC4A Handbook
that sets out the accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations. These standards are effective for
fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2012, with an option for early adoption. The University is a
government not-for-profit organization [GNFPO] and therefore will be required to follow Public Sector
Accounting Standards. The University is currently evaluating the impact of these standards.

4. RESTRICTED CASH
Restricted cash consists of premiums paid to Manulife Financial on behalf of employees which are held in
an interest-bearing bank account to be used to fund future rate increases or enhancements in the long-term

disability and basic term life insurance plans. The related liability is included in accounts payable and
accrued liabilities.

5. INVESTMENTS

Investments as at March 31

[thousands of dollars] 2011 2010
Cost Fair Value Cost  Fair Value
Fixed income 43,052 46,361 45,843 48,485
Equities 37,400 44,612 31,245 33,127
80,452 90,973 77,088 81,612

Investment income for the year ended March 31

[thousands of dollars] 2011 2010
Investment income 5,882 4,462
Unrealized gain on investments 6,000 9,746
Less: related expenses 539 454

11,343 13,754
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6. CAPITAL ASSETS

[thousands of dollars] 2011 2010
Net Net

Accumulated Book Book

Cost Amortization Value Value

Buildings 257,224 136,725 120,499 102,655

Furniture and equipment 94,640 55,981 38,659 37,569

Computers 22,478 17,886 4,592 5,345

Banner finance 1,896 1,462 434 324

Vehicles 3,652 3,217 435 765

Library collection 135,582 106,425 29,157 29,808

515,472 321,696 193,776 176,466

Capital assets include certain assets under capital leases with a net book value of $1.6 million [2010 — $2.0
million].

7. BANK INDEBTEDNESS

Pursuant to Section 41 of the Memorial University Act, the University has received approval from the
Lieutenant-Governor in Council to borrow to finance two capital projects. The projects involved the
construction of a new residence complex for Grenfell Campus [Project 1] and the implementation of an
energy performance program in five buildings on the University’s main campus in St. John’s [Project 2].
The debt has been negotiated using bankers’ acceptances [BA’s] which mature during the 2011/12 fiscal
year. Management expects to refinance these loans through BA’s for the balance of the term of the loan.
Disclosure related to interest rate risk is provided in note 12.

Derivative liability

Project 1 interest rate swap transaction involves the exchange of the underlying floating rate Canadian BA
for a fixed interest rate of 4.76% expiring April 12, 2017 with a notional amount of $3.0 million. The fair
value of this interest rate swap is $0.24 million [2010 — $0.3 million].

Project 2 interest rate swap transaction involves the exchange of the underlying floating rate Canadian BA

for a fixed interest rate of 5.12% expiring October 1, 2022 with a notional amount of $13.8 million. The
fair value of this interest rate swap is $1.4 million [2010 ~ $1.5 million].

8. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS

Supplemental Retirement Income Plan [SRIP]

In May 1996, the Board of Regents approved a SRIP to provide benefits to employees of the University
whose salaries exceed the Canada Revenue Agency maximum pensionable salary and whose defined
benefit pension, therefore, exceeds the maximum benefit payable from the Plan.

498



Memorial University of Newfoundland
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2011

The significant actuarial assumptions used in measuring SRIP include a discount rate of 5.2% [2010 —
5.7%] and an average compensation increase of 4.5% [2010 — 4.5%].

Voluntary Early Retirement Income Plan [VERIP]

In February and May 1996, the University offered faculty and staff, who reached age 55 and attained a
minimum of 10 years pensionable service, an opportunity to take an early retirement under the provisions
of the VERIP.

Subject to eligibility criteria, the Plan provided an incentive of enhanced pension benefits of up to five
years’ pensionable service and waiver of actuarial reduction, if applicable, or a lump sum early retirement
payment. The early retirement incentive is unfunded. Current-year payments are funded on an annual basis
from operations.

The significant actuarial assumption used in measuring VERIP includes a discount rate of 5.2% [2010 —
5.7%].

Other benefits

The University has a number of other post-employment benefits providing group life insurance and health
care benefits on a cost shared basis to retired employees, and in certain cases, their surviving spouses. In
addition, the University pays severance to certain employee groups upon termination, retirement or death,
provided they meet certain eligibility criteria. Vacation liability is also accrued and is expected to be used
by employees in the next fiscal year.

The significant actuarial assumptions used in measuring other benefits include a discount rate of 5.2%
[2010 — 5.7%)] and an average rate of compensation increase of 4.5% [2010 — 4.5%].

SRIP VERIP Other Benefits
[thousands of dollars] 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Accrued benefit obligation
Balance, beginning of year 9,327 5,543 5,992 5,466 103,710 72,487
Current service cost 451 237 - - 3,668 2,408
Interest cost 540 416 341 410 6,198 5,461
Benefits paid (309) (265) (545) (576) (3,244) (3,310)
Actuarial loss 1,902 3,396 147 692 8,214 26,664
11,911 9,327 5,935 5,992 118,546 103,710
Current plan expense
Current service expense 451 237 - - 3,668 2,408
Interest cost 540 416 341 410 6,198 5,461
Actuarial loss 1,902 3,396 147 692 8,214 26,664
2,893 4,049 488 1,102 18,080 34,533
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A summary of these accrued benefit obligations are as follows:
[thousands of dollars]

Employee future benefits
Supplemental retirement income plan
Voluntary early retirement income plan
Accrued vacation

Less: current portion
Long-term employee future benefits

9. LONG-TERM DEBT
[thousands of dollars]

RBC Royal Bank, fixed term demand loan, related to Harlow
campus, 5.19% interest, repayable in nine equal annual,
blended payments of $121, maturing in April 2012,
unsecured

CMHC mortgage on Queen’s College, 5.875% interest,
repayable in 50 equal, blended payments of $29 semi-
annually, maturing in June 2019, secured

Capital leases negotiated through the RBC Royal Bank,
varying interest rates, payable in equal annual installments,
secured by assets under lease

Less: current portion

Annual repayments of long-term debt over the next five years are as follows:

[thousands of dollars]

2012
2013
2014
2015
2016

500

2011 2010
118,546 103,710
11,911 9,327
5,935 5,992
13,755 12,672
150,147 131,701
14,856 13,608
135,291 118,093
2011 2010
227 330
349 385
73 391
649 1,106
303 733
346 373

303

59

60

46
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10. DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONS

Expenses of future periods

Deferred contributions related to expenses of future periods represent unspent externally restricted grants
and donations for research and programs.

[thousands of dollars] 2011 2010
Balance, beginning of year 61,180 53,337
Grants and donations received during the year 63,754 62,703
Less: expenses incurred during the year 60,611 54,860
Balance, end of year 64,323 61,180

Capital assets

Deferred capital contributions related to capital assets represent the unamortized and unspent amount of
donations and grants received for the purchase of capital assets. The amortization of deferred capital
contributions is recorded as revenue in the consolidated statement of operations.

[thousands of dollars] 2011 2010
Balance, beginning of year 159,361 147,355
Additional contributions received 36,802 33,779
Less: amounts amortized to revenue 22,229 21,773
Balance, end of year 173,934 159,361

Total deferred contributions

[thousands of dollars] 2011 2010
Expenses of future periods 64,323 61,180
Capital assets 173,934 159,361
Balance, end of year 238,257 220,541

11. MEMORIAL UNIVERSITY ACT

In accordance with the Memorial University Act, the University is normally prohibited from recording a
deficit on its consolidated financial statements. During 1996, pursuant to Section 36 of the Memorial
University Act, the University received approval from the Lieutenant-Governor in Council to record a
deficit of up to $5.0 million in 1996 and an additional $10.0 million in 1997 as a result of the recognition of
the liabilities related to VERIP for faculty and staff. During 2001, the University received approval from
the Lieutenant-Governor in Council to exclude from the definition of a deficit, pursuant to Section 36 of the
Memorial University Act, any amounts resulting from the recognition of the liabilities related to recording
vacation pay entitlements, severance and any other post-employment benefits.
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12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value and their subsequent
measurement is dependent on their classification. Their classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial instruments were acquired or issued, their characteristics and the University’s designation of such
instruments. The standards require that all financial assets be classified either as held-for-trading [HFT],
available-for-sale [AFS], held-to-maturity [HTM], or loans and receivables and all financial liabilities to be
classified as either HFT or other liabilities [OL]. Subsequent to initial recognition, the standards require
that all financial assets and liabilities be measured at fair value with the exception of loans and receivables,
securities classified as HTM, liabilities classified as OL, and AFS financial assets that do not have quoted
market prices in an active market. These are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate

method [EIM].

Classification of financial instruments

The University has designated its financial instruments as shown in the following table. The financial
instruments are measured as follows based on their classification.

Asset/liability Classification Measurement
Cash, cash equivalents, Held-for-trading Fair value

restricted cash and short -

term investments
Investments Held-for-trading Fair value
Accounts receivable Loans and receivables Amortized cost using EIM
Accrued interest receivable Loans and receivables Amortized cost using EIM
Long-term receivable Loans and receivables Amortized cost using EIM
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ~ Other financial liabilities Amortized cost using EIM
Bank indebtedness Other financial liabilities Amortized cost using EIM
Long-term debt Other financial liabilities Amortized cost using EIM
Derivative liability Held-for-trading Fair value

Held-for-trading

HFT financial assets and liabilities are financial assets typically acquired for resale prior to maturity. They
are measured at fair value at the consolidated statement of financial position date. Interest earned, interest
accrued, gains and losses realized on disposal and unrealized gains and losses from market fluctuations are
included in the consolidated statement of operations.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are accounted for at amortized cost using EIM.
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Other financial liabilities

Other liabilities are recorded at amortized cost and include all liabilities and long-term debt.

Embedded derivatives

There are no embedded derivatives in the consolidated financial statements of the University.

Credit risk

The University is exposed to credit risk with respect to accounts receivable from students and clients.
Services are provided to a large number of students and entities, which minimizes the concentration of
credit risk. The University routinely monitors the receivable balances and establishes an appropriate
allowance for doubtful accounts based upon factors surrounding credit risk, historical trends, and other
information.

Interest rate risk

The University’s exposure to interest rate risk relates to its floating interest rate bank indebtedness which
utilizes BA’s. The University has managed this floating interest rate risk by entering into interest rate swap
agreements with the RBC Royal Bank to offset the movement in the BA rates. Any change in BA rates will
be offset by a corresponding change in the interest rate swap. The fair value of these interest rate swap
agreements are recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position and the change in value is
reflected in the consolidated statement of operations.

Liquidity risk

The University is exposed to liquidity risk with respect to its contractual obligations and financial
liabilities. This risk is managed by maintaining adequate cash and cash equivalents. The University believes
that cash and cash equivalents on hand, future cash flows from government grants and student fees will be
adequate to meet its financial obligations.

Market risk

The University is exposed to market risk on its investments due to future fluctuations in market prices. This
risk is managed by a Statement of Investment Policy and Objectives approved by the Board of Regents
which includes investment policy provisions for an acceptable asset mix structure and quality constraints on
fixed income instruments.
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13. CONTINGENCIES

(a) Canadian University Reciprocal Insurance Exchange [CURIE]

The University participates in a self-insurance cooperative involving a contractual agreement to share the
insurance property and liability risks of member universities for a term of not less than five years.

In the event that premiums are not sufficient to cover claims settlements, the member universities would be
subject to an assessment in proportion to their participation. For the year ended December 31, 2010,
CURIE has a surplus of $9.2 million and a cumulative subscribers’ equity of $41.0 million. The
University’s pro rata share is approximately 3% on an ongoing basis.

(b) Class action lawsuit

In 2007, a class action lawsuit was filed on behalf of all former employees of the University who retired or
terminated employment on or before December 31, 1992 and were entitled to receive post-retirement life,
health and dental group insurance benefits. The lawsuit alleges that this group of retirees was entitled to
receive these insurance benefits for life, at no cost to the group of retirees. This action has been certified as
a class action and the University has sought leave to appeal from the decision certifying the action. The
University continues to defend its position and the potential exposure to this claim is indeterminable at the
present time.

14. CAPITAL DISCLOSURES

The University considers its capital to be its net assets. Its restricted net assets consist of amounts restricted
for endowment purposes. The University’s objectives when managing its capital are to safeguard its ability
to continue as a going concern in order to provide services to its students and research funding agencies.
Annual budgets are developed and monitored to ensure the University’s capital is maintained at an
appropriate level. The University has no external restrictions imposed on its capital, excluding its
endowments.

15. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain of the 2010 comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the consolidated financial
statement presentation adopted for the current year.
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To the Directors of the
Multi-Materials Stewardship Board

We have audited the consolidated statement of financial position of the Multi-Materials Stewardship
Board at March 31, 2011, and the consolidated statements of operations, changes in net assets and
cash flows for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
organization’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Board as at March 31, 2011, and the results of its operations and its

cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles.

g}...g—‘/z.;tz 447

St. John's, Newfoundland and Labrador

June 23, 2011 Chartered Accountants
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Year Ended March 31 2011 2010
Revenue
Gross revenue from deposits $22,792,026  $ 21,263,547
By-product revenue 2,330,976 1,762,755
Residential Backyard Composting Program . 60
Household Hazardous Waste Program 38,557 68,215
Composting program 1,100 -
25,162,659 23,094,577
Cost of sales (Note 11) 21732659  _20.669.866
Gross margin 3,430,000 2,424,711
Miscellaneous income 127,833 45,347
Income before expenses 3,557,833 2,470,058
Expenses
Administrative (Page 14) 2,569,358 2,214 255
Grant disbursements 2262316 1.309.745
4,831,674 3,524,000

Excess of expenses over revenue

$ (1,273,841)  $ (1,053,942)
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Year Ended March 31 2011 2010
Investedin  Unrestricted
Capital Assets Net Assets Total Total
Net assets,
beginning of year $ 303,889 $ 16,830,510 $ 17,134,399 $ 18,188,341

Excess of expenses over revenue  (81,491) (1,192,350) (1,273,841) (1,053,942)

Investments in capital assets
(net of proceeds on disposal
of property and equipment) 37,348 (37.348) - -

Net assets, end of year $ 259746  $15600,812  $15,860,558  $ 17,134,399
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March 31 2011 2010
Assets
Current
Cash and cash equivalents $ 16,429,334  $ 17,967,396
Receivables (Note 6) 2,975,112 2,886,848
Inventories (Note 7) 79,554 63,411
Prepaids 146,348 47,105
Current portion of notes receivable 31571 13,352
19,661,919 20,978,112
Notes receivable, non-interest bearing, repayable
over the next five years 85,044 53,408
Long term investments 768,122 756,474
Property and equipment (Note 8) 259,746 303.889
$ 20,774,831  $22,091,883
Liabilities
Current
Payables and accruals $ 710,215 § 958,345
Grants payable 1,781,580 1,786,083
Unearned revenue 1,995,290 1,857,829
4,487,085 4,602,257
Performance bonds payable 404,886 355,227
Accrued severance pay 22,302 -
4,914,273 4957484
Net Assets
Net assets invested in capital assets 259,746 303,889
Unrestricted net assets 15,600,812 16,830,510
15860558  _ 17,134,399
$20,774,831  $22,091,883
Commitments (Note 10)
hairperson %}%/ Director

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended March 31

2011

2010

(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents

Operating
Excess of expenses over revenue
Depreciation
Gain on disposal of equipment

Change in non-cash operating
working capital (Note 9)

Financing
Increase (decrease) in performance bonds payable
Increase in accrued severance pay

Investing

Increase in notes receivable

Increase in long term investments

Purchase of property and equipment

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning of year

End of year

$ (1,273,841)

$ (1,053,942)

81,491 97,587
(1.474)

(1,192,350) (957,829)
(318.823) (949.113)
11,173 1906942
49,659 (363,974)
22302 -
71,961 (363,974)
(49,855) (66,760)
(11,647) (291,353)
(37,348) (44,404)

- 5,373

(98.850) (397.144)
(1,538,062)  (2,668,060)
17,967,396  _20.635456

$ 16,429,334  $17,967,39%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2011

1. Nature of operations

The Multi-Materials Stewardship Board is a statutory corporation established pursuant to The
Environmental Protection Act. This Board manages the Used Beverage Container Deposit
Refund System, the Used Tire Recycling Program, and the Newfoundland and Labrador Waste
Management Trust Fund in the Province of Newfoundland and Labrador and is mandated to
support and promote the protection, enhancement and wise use of the environment through
waste management programs.

The Board is exempt from income taxes under Section 149(1)(d) of the Canadian Income Tax
Act.

2. Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Multi-Materials Stewardship
Board and the Newfoundland and Labrador Waste Management Trust Fund.

The Multi-Materials Stewardship Board - Newfoundland and Labrador Waste Management
Trust Fund is a restricted fund, managed by the Board, and its accounts have been grouped in

these financial statements for consolidation purposes. Separate audited financial statements have
been issued for this Trust Fund, with an audit report date of June 23, 2011.

The March 31, 2010 comparative figures include the accounts of the Residential Backyard
Composting Program for consolidation purposes. This program ceased operations effective
March 31, 2010.

3. Summary of significant accounting policies
Fund accounting

Fund accounting is generally acceptcd as the basis of accounting for pubhc sector organizations.

A summary of significant accounting policies relating to fund accounting is as
follows:

1) property and equipment are recorded at cost, net of proceeds on disposal;

i) capital additions financed from the unrestricted funds are included in the net assets
invested in capital assets account; and

i) depreciation of property and equipment and gains (losses) on disposal are included in
the net assets invested in capital assets account.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
Use of estimates

In preparing the Board’s consolidated financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and reported amounts of revenue and expenses

during the year. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded in Canadian dollars at exchange
rates in effect at the related transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are adjusted to reflect exchange rates at the statement of financial position
date. Exchange gains and losses arising on the translation of monetary assets and liabilities are
included in the determination of income.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, balances with banks and short term deposits
with original maturities of three months or less. Cash and cash equivalents also include a balance
of $55,000 (2010 - $6,080) in restricted cash related to the performance bonds payable.

Revenue recognition

Deposit revenue is recognized when remittances are collected plus an estimated accrual based on
subsequent receipts.

Byproduct revenue is recognized upon shipment and when all significant contractual obligations
have been satisfied and collection is reasonably assured.

Revenue from the Household Hazardous Waste Program is recognized as the municipalities are
invoiced and collection is reasonably assured.

Revenue from the sale of compost bins is recognized when the bins are sold and collection is
reasonably assured.

Grant revenue is recognized in the period in which entitlement arises. Revenue received for a
future period is deferred until the future period when related costs have been incurred.

Miscellaneous income (including interest income) is recognized as earned.
Inventories
Inventories, which are comprised of aluminium beverage containers, and PET beverage

containers, are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Inventory is costed based on
net realizable value using current market prices.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Long term investments

Loan term investments include guaranteed investment certificates with original maturities of
greater than one year. At March 31, 2011 $349,888 (2010 - $349,147) of these investments are
restricted to repay performance bonds at the end of the contracts if all conditions have been met
by the parties involved.

Depreciation

Rates and bases of depreciation applied to write-off the cost of property and equipment over
their estimated lives are as follows:

Rocaps equipment 30%, declining balance
Office furniture and equipment 20%, declining balance
Leasehold improvements 5 years, straight line

Computer hardware 30%, declining balance
Computer software 30%, declining balance
Bags and tubs 30%, declining balance
Vehicle 30%, declining balance

Impairment of long-lived assets

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment upon the occurrence of events or changes in
circumstances indicating that the value of the assets may not be recoverable, as measured by
comparing their net book value to the estimated undiscounted cash flows generated by their use.
Impaired assets are recorded at fair value, determined principally using discounted future cash
flows expected from their use and eventual disposition.

Uneamed revenue

Unearned revenue consists of deposits on containers yet to be returned for redemption and
recycling. ‘The amount recorded by the Board as unearned revenue consists of sixty days of
deposits received from distributors, adjusted by an estimated recovery rate of 66% (March 31,
2010 - 68%).

Financial instruments

The CICA Handbook Section 3855, "Financial Instruments - Recognition and Measurement”,
requires the Board to revalue all of its financial assets and liabilities at fair value.

This standard also requires the Board to classify financial assets and liabilities according to their
characteristics and management's choices and intentions related thereto for the purposes of
ongoing measurements. Classification choices for financial assets include: ) held for trading -
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recorded in net earnings; b) held to maturity -
recorded at amortized cost with gains and losses recognized in net earnings in the period that the
asset is no longer recognized or impaired; c) available-for-sale - measured at fair value with
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)

changes in fair value recognized in other comprehensive income for the current period until
realized through disposal or impairment; and d) loans and receivables - recorded at amortized
cost with gains and losses recognized in net earnings in the period that the asset is no longer
recognized or impaired.

Classification choices for financial liabilities include: a) held for trading - measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recorded in net earnings and b) other - measured at amortized cost
with gains and losses recognized in net earnings in the period that the liability is no longer
recognized. Subsequent measurement for these assets and liabilities are based on either fair value
or amortized cost using the effective interest method, depending upon their classification. Any
financial asset or liability can be classified as held for trading as long as its fair value is reliably
determinable.

In accordance with the standard, the Board's financial assets and liabilities are classified and

measured as follows:

Asset/ Liability Classification Measurement
Cash and cash equivalents Held for trading Fair value
Receivables Loans and receivable Amortized cost
Notes receivables Loans and receivable Amortized cost
Long term investments, performance

bonds payable Held for trading Fair value
Payables and accruals Other financial liabilities Amortized cost

Other statement of financial position accounts, such as inventories, prepaids, property,
equipment, unearned revenue, and accrued severance pay, are not within the scope of these
accounting standards as they are not financial instruments.

The fair value of a financial instrument is the estimated amount that the Board would receive or
pay to terminate the instrument agreement at the reporting date. To estimate the fair value of
each type of financial instrument various market value data were used as appropriate. The fair
value of cash and cash equivalents approximated its carrying value.

Accounting policies adopted during the year
Accrued severance pay

Severance pay is accounted for on an accrual basis and is calculated based upon years of service
and current salary levels. The right to be paid severance pay vests with employees with nine
years of continual service, and accordingly no provision has been made in accounts for
employees with less than nine years of continual service. Severance pay is payable when the
employee ceases employment with the Board.
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4. Risk management

The Board’s policy for managing significant risks includes policies, procedures and oversight
designed to reduce the risks identified to an appropriate threshold. The Board of Directors is
provided with timely and relevant reports on the management of significant risks. Significant
risks managed by the Board include liquidity, credit and market risks.

Liguadity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Board will be unable to meet its contractual obligations and
financial liabilities. The Board manages liquidity risk by monitoring its cash flows and ensuring
that it has sufficient cash available to meet its obligations and liabilities.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss associated with a counterparty’s inability to fulfill its payment
obligations. The Board’s credit risk is attributable to receivables. Management believes that the

credit risk concentration with respect to financial instruments included in receivables is remote.
Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss that may arise from changes in market factors such as interest rates
and foreign exchange rates.

! Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial asset will fluctuate due to
changes in market interest rates. The Board is exposed to interest rate risk through its
cash and cash equivalents and long term investments. Interest rate risk is managed
through holding low risk cash and cash equivalents and long term investments.

11) Foreign exchange risk

The Board is exposed to foreign exchange risk on fluctuations related to by-product

sales to the United States. Subsequent to year end, foreign exchange is managed
through the Board’s USD bank account.

5. Capital management

The capital structure of the Board consists of net assets invested in capital assets and
unrestricted net assets. The primary objective of the Board’s capital management is to provide
adequate funding to ensure efficient delivery of its services.

Net assets invested in capital assets represent the amount of net assets that are not available for
other purposes because they have been invested.

Unrestricted net assets are funds available for future operations and are preserved so the Board
can have financial flexibility should opportunities arise in the future.
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6. Receivables 2011 2010
Depostts $ 2,570,233 § 2,352,643
Trade and other 404,879 534,205
$ 2975112 § 2,886,848
7. Inventories 2011 2010
Aluminium beverage containers $ 47,300 § 52,450
PET beverage containers 32,254 10961
$ 79,554 § 63,411
8. Property and equipment 2011 2010
Accumulated Net Net
Cost  Depreciation  Book Value Book V.
Rocaps equipment $ 144928 $ 97487 $ 47441 $ 64275
Office furniture and equipment 150,911 93,123 57,788 53,513
Leasehold improvements 35,073 31,046 4,027 4927
Computer hardware 99,696 63,018 36,678 41,202
Computer software 225,494 189,845 35,649 34,062
Bags and tubs 402,955 327,655 75,300 102,031
Vehicle 9,048 6,185 2,863 3.879
$ 1,068,105 $ 808359 $§ 259,746 § 303,889
9. Supplemental cash flow information 2011 2010
Change in non-cash operating working capital
Rcccivab}cs $ (88,264) § (470,844)
Inventories (16,143) (18,413)
Prepaids (99,244) (789)
Payables and accruals (248,130) 138,514
Grants payable (4,503) (760,552)
Unearned revenue 137,461 162,971
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10. Commitments

The Board is committed to minimum annual lease payments for property and equipment for the
next three years as follows: 2012 - $233,146; 2013 - $70,143; and 2014 - $13,793.

The Board has entered into the following agreements:
(1) processing and transportation of beverage containers up to July, 2014;
(1) collection of used tires in Labrador West area to April, 2012;
(i) collection and transportation of used tires in the island portion of Newfoundland
and Labrador and the Labrador Straits to August, 2011;
(iv) collection of used tires in Happy Valley-Goose Bay area to February, 2013;
(v) collection and disposal of used tires to Apnl 2011;
(v)) transportation of used tires collected in Labrador to May, 2011;
(vil) transportation and disposal of processed glass to March, 2011;
(viif) baling of used tires and crushing/ removal of tire rims to December, 2011; and
(ix) household hazardous waste collection and disposal to December 2011.

11. Cost of sales

In June 2004, the Board terminated its contract under the Used Tire Recycling Program with its
previous contractor. Subsequent to this termination, the Board assumed responsibility for the
Program and implemented a contingency plan for the storage of used tires. The costs will be
incurred until the Board is able to make alternate arrangements under the Used Tire Recycling
Program.
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Consolidated Schedule of Administrative Expenses

Year Ended March 31 2011 2010
Advertising $ 88,372 $ 92,294
Bad debts - 3,164
Depreciation 81,491 97,587
Directors’ remuneration 14,233 16,055
Dues, licenses and education 6,192 11,833
Equipment rental 16,162 22,403
Insurance 10,761 9,705
Interest and bank charges 3,665 5,339
Marketing and communications 250,184 288,216
Meetings and entertainment 12,117 23,189
Miscellaneous 5,516 3279
Professional fees 183,072 107,418
Rent 109,854 109,819
Repairs and maintenance 1,392 4,680
Rocaps supplies 28,744 54,615
Stationery and office supplies 41,734 50,068
Telecommunications 55,482 39,635
Travel - board and staff 89,043 129,950
Vehicle operating 22,652 15,837
Wages and benefits 1,548,692 1,129.169

$ 2,569,358 § 2214255
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